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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited (“RHIM
IR” or “the Company”) will be held on Wednesday, the 30" July 2025 at registered office of the Company situated at
Dalmiapuram, Lalgudi, District Tiruchirapalli, Chennai, Tamil Nadu- 621651 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31
March 2025, along with Director’s and Auditor’s report thereon and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 together
with the reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered
and adopted.”

2. To consider and appoint a director in place of Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN: 06500871), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN: 06500871), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To ratify the remuneration of Cost auditors of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 and in this regard to consider
and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the members of the Company hereby ratify the remuneration of Rs.
50,000/~ (Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses incurred or to be incurred in
connection with the cost audit, as approved by the Board of Directors, payable to M/s. K. G. Goyal & Associate, Cost
Accountants (having firm registration number-000024), who were appointed as the cost auditors of the Company to
conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company for the financial year 2025-2026.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/ or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”
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To appoint and fix the remuneration of Secretarial Auditors and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements Regulations, 2015, Mr. Naresh Verma,(Membership No. FCS 5403; COP: 4424), Proprietor
of M/s. Naresh Verma & Associates, Company Secretaries, a Peer Reviewed firm, who has submitted his consent to act as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for a term of five
(5) consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of this 7 Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) till the conclusion of
the 12" AGM to be held in the calendar year 2030, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the
Company and the said Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include any
committee thereof) and/ or Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of documents with
any authority or accepting any modifications to the clauses as required by such authorities, for the purpose of giving effect
to this resolution and for matters connected therewith, or incidental thereto.”

By order of Board of Directors

obby Mehndiratta
Company Secretary

Gurugram,27 May 2025 Membership No. A54443

Registered Office:

Dalmiapuram, Lalgudi District Tiruchirapalli,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 621651

Tel: +91 22 49851200

Email: corporate.india@rhimagnesita.com
CIN: U26100TN2018PLC125133
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT WITH REGARD TO AGENDA AS MENTIONED ABOVE
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 3

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
the Company is required to have audit of its cost records maintained for the specified product in relation to the business
activity of the Company by a Cost Accountant. The Board at their meeting held on 27 May 2025 has approved the appointment
of M/s. K. G. Goyal & Associate, Cost Accountants (having firm registration number 000024) as cost auditor of the Company
for the purpose of conducting audit of the cost records maintain by the Company for the financial year 2025-26 at a
remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- plus applicable taxes, out-of-pocket and other expenses.

In accordance with the aforesaid provisions of the Act, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors to conduct audit of cost
records of the Company for the said financial year, shall be required to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for resoltution as set out at item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2025-2026.

The Directors recommend the aforesaid resolution for approval by the members as an ordinary resolution pursuant to the
provisions of the Act.

None of the directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the said
resolution either financially or otherwise.

ITEMNO. 4

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and in accordance with the
provisions of Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements Regulations, 2015, Every Material unlisted subsidiary is required to undertake Secretarial Audit by a Peer
Reviewed firm who shall be appointed by the Members of the Company, on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, for
a period of five (5) consecutive years.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 27 May, 2025, subject to the approval of member of the Company,
approved the appointment of Mr. Naresh Verma,(Membership No. FCS 5403; COP: 4424), Proprietor of M/s. Naresh Verma &
Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for a term of five (5) consecutive years, to hold
the office of the Secretarial Auditor, effective from the conclusion of 7" AGM until the conclusion of the 12" AGM to be held in
the calendaryear2030. He was Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY25.

Mr. Naresh Verma, had already given his consent for his appointment as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and have
confirmed that he fulfills the criteria as specified in clause (a) of Regulation 24A(1A) of SEBI Listing Regulations including the
test of independence and have further confirmed that he has not incurred any of disqualifications as specified by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India.

M/s. Naresh Verma & Associates is primarily engaged in providing professional services in the field of Corporate Laws, SEBI
Regulations, FEMA Regulations, including carrying out Secretariat Audit, Due Diligence Audit and Compliance Audit for various
reputed companies. The firm is peer reviewed under Institute of Companies Secretaries of India regulations and is holding peer
review certificate no. 3266/2023.

The Directorsrecommend the aforesaid resolution for the approval by the members as an ordinary resolution pursuant to the
provisions of the Act.

None of the directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the said
resolution either financially or otherwise.

By order of Board of Directors

Bobby Mehndiratta
Company Secretary

Gurugram ,27 May 2025 Membership No. A54443
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NOTES:

1. Astatement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to special business under item no 3 and 4 as
mentioned above and the details as required under Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) in respect of the
director seeking appointment/re- appointment at this AGM, to be transacted at the meeting is annexed thereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE, ON A POLL, IN HIS/HER STEAD. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM,
DULY COMPLETED, SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT LEAST 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. PROXIES SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF LIMITED COMPANIES,
SOCIETIES, ETC., MUST BE SUPPORTED BYAPPROPRIATERESOLUTIONS/AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the
total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person
or shareholder.

2. Corporate members/ institutionat investors, as the case may be, intending to send their authorized representatives to
attend the Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are requested to send to the Company a
certified copy of the Board resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

3. Members are requested to bring their copies of AGM notice to the meeting. In order to enable us to register your
attendance at the venue of the AGM, members are requested to please bring their folio number/ demat account
number/DP ID- Client ID to enable us to provide a duly filled attendance slip for participation at the meeting.

4. All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory statement are open for inspection by the members at the
registered office of the Company on all the working days (that is, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) during
normal business hours upto the date of the Meeting. The aforesaid documents will also be available for inspection by the
members at the Meeting.

5. Interms of the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSl), the details
with respect to the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the General Meeting is annexed hereto and forms
integral part of the Notice. Requisite declarations as specified under the Act read with Rules made thereunder, have been
received from the Directors for theirappointment/re-appointment, as the case may be.
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Annexure to the Notice

Details of Director proposed to be appointed/re-appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(Pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India)

S.No Name of Director Mr. Parmod Sagar
i Director ldentification Number 06500871
2. Date of Birth 4 September 1965
& Date of first appointment at the Board 5 January 2023
4. Qualifications B-Tech (Mechanical) Bachelor of Engineering
(Instrumentation and Control)
S Experience (Including expertise in specific functional | Techno Commercial (Operation & Marketing) in
area)/ Brief Resume RefractoryIndustry
6. Terms and Conditions of Appointment/ His office shall be liable to retire by rotation
Re-appointment
7. Shareholding in the Company Hold 1 share as nominee of RHI Magnesita India
Limitedi.e. Holding Company
8. Relationship with other Directors and Key Managerial | None
Personnel
9. Number of Meetings of Board attended during the year Four
10. Directorships held in other public companies 1. RHI Magnesita India Limited

2. Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
3. RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited

The Board is authorized to constitute one or more functional committees delegating thereto powers and duties with respect
to specific purposes for which such committee has been constituted. Meeting of such committees are held, as and when
the need arises. Time schedule for hotding such functional committees is finalized in consultation with the committee
members.

14. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA
The Board of Directors has carried out evaluation of its own performance, board committees, and individual directors
pursuant to the provisions of the Act.
Evaluation criteria and procedure for the performance of the Board, its committees and individual Directors including
Independent Directors is already specified. The criteria for evaluation of Directors include certain parameters i.e.
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Participation and attendance in Board and Committee Meetings actively and consistently.

Prepares adequately for Board and Committee Meetings.

Contributes to strategy and other areas impacting Company’s performance.

Brings his/her experience and credibility to bear on the critical areas of performance of the organization.

Keeps updated knowledge of his/her areas of expertise and other important areas.

Communicates in open and constructive manner.

Gives fair chance to other members to contribute, participates actively in the discussions and is consensus oriented.
Helps to create brand image of the Company and helps the company wherever possible to resolve issues, if any.
Actively contributes toward positive growth of the Company.

Conduct himself /herself in a manner that is ethical and consistent with the laws of the land.

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee
thereof. The sitting fees as decided by the Board is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Non-
Executive Directors aligned to the requirement of the Company. However, it is ensured that the amount of such fees
does not exceed the amount prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

Other than the above, no other payments are made to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

The amount of sitting fees of Rs. 50,000 for each Board Meeting was paid to non-executive directors except Mr. Azim
Syed, Mr. Gustavo Goncalves Franco and Ms. Ticiana Kobel who waived their right for sitting fees for attending board
meeting.

Details of Remuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors

Apart from sitting fee that Non-Executive Directors are entitled to as per Companies Act, 2013 and reimbursement
of expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties, none of the Non-Executive Directors have any other material
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors, its Senior Management or its
Subsidiaries and Associates. Mr. Azim Syed is also an employee of RHI Magnesita India Limited, holding company
and Mr. Gustavo Lucio Goncalves Franco and Ms. Ticiana Kobel are employees of ultimate holding Company.

The sitting fees was paid to the Non-Executive Directors of the Companyforattendingeach of the board meetingwas
within the limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and as approved by the Board of Directors of the

Company. The sittingfees paid for FY 2024-25 is as follows:

(Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Name of director Sitting fees of Board Meeting
Dr.Vijay Sharma 1.50
Mr. Nazim sheikh 2.00
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive
income (comprising loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matter

4. Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
Financial Statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF Cyber City, Gurugram - 122 002

T: +91 (124) 6169910

Registered office and Head office: 11-A, Vishnu Digamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan, New Dethi - 110002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001)

with effect from July 25, 2014, Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAl registration number is 012754N/N500016 (ICAI registration
number before conversion was 012754N)
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To the Members of RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 of 6

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessment of carrying value of goodwill
(Refer Note 24 to the Financial Statements)

The Company has goodwill carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss of Rs. 48,950.30 lakhs.

The Company reviews the carrying value of goodwill at
every balance sheet date irrespective of whether there is |
| any indication of impairment or not, the carrying value
is assessed for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’, and an impairment provision is
recognised, where applicable. The management has
determined the Company as a whole as the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) for the purpose of impairment
assessment, and with the involvement of independent |
valuation experts (“management’s experts”), the
recoverable value of the CGU has been determined.

The assessment of carrying value of goodwill has been
considered as a key audit matter as the determination of
recoverable value involves significant management
judgement and estimates such as future expected level
of operations and related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, discount rate, growth rate, terminal growth
rate etc.

Our audit procedures included the following;:

» Obtained an understanding and evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of controls over
the impairment assessment.

- Assessed whether the Company’s determination of
CGUs was consistent with our knowledge of the .
Company’s operations.

» Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of management’s experts and perused the report issued
by them.

- Involved our auditor’s experts to assist in

o assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
model including the independent assessment of
the underlying assumptions relating to discount
rate, terminal growth rate etc.

o evaluation of the cash flow forecasts (with

underlying economic growth rate) by comparing
them to the approved budgets and our
understanding of the internal and external
factors.
» Verified the mathematical accuracy of the
computations involved in the valuation model.
« Assessed the sensitivity analysis and evaluated whether
any reasonably foreseeable change in assumptions could
lead to impairment or material change in fair valuation.
» Discussed the key assumptions and sensitivities with
those charged with governance.
- Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made in the
Financial Statements.

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Director’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as

applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial
Statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

12,

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13.

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the back-up of books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India and the matters stated in paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 14(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A.
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

.

ii.

iii.

1v.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Financial Statements — Refer Note 31 to the Financial Statements;

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025, under the applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contract. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2025, as required under
applicable law or Indian Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on derivate
contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 36(v)(a) to the Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note
36(v)(a) to the Financial Statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 36(v)(b) to the Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 36(v)(b) to
the Financial Statements); and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,
except that the audit trail is not maintained in case of modification by certain users with specific
access and the audit trail is not maintained for direct database changes. During the course of
performing our procedures, other than the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained where
the question of our commenting does not arise, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with. Further, the audit trail was not maintained in the prior year and hence the
question of our commenting on whether the audit trail was preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention does not arise.
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15. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012574N/N500016

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

UDIN: 25078571BMOCES2289
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of RHI Magnesita
India Refractories Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAT"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our aundit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012574N/N500016

prgpi

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner

Membership Number: 078571

UDIN: 25078571BMOCES2289
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books of
account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

1. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets).

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of two years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 37 to
the Financial Statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description | Gross Title deeds | Whether | Period held g Reason for not
of property | carrying | held in the | promoter, | -indicate | being held in the
value (Rs. | name of director range, | name of the
in lakhs) [ | or their | where Company
| | relative or | appropriate
| l employee | | |
|
| Land with ' 191.99 | Shree Natraj | No Since | Title deed registered |
| respect to | | Ceramic and | January 2023 | in the name of Shree
| Khambhalia | | Chemical ' Natraj Ceramic and
manufacturing Industries | Chemical Industries

was changed to
Dalmia Refractories
Limited. This entity
got merged into
Dalmia Bharat
J Refractories
Limited.
By virtue of Business
transfer agreement
dated November 19,
2022, the Company
has acquired Indian
refractories business
from Dalmia Bharat
Refractories
Limited. The name
of the Company has
changed from
Dalmia OCL Limited
to RHI Magnesita
India Refractories
Limited and

|
|
|
|
|
unit Limited ' Limited whose name
|
1
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Description | Gross Title deeds | Whether | Period held | Reason for not
of property |carrying |held in the | promoter, | -indicate being held in the
value (Rs. | name of director range, name of the
in lakhs) or their | where Company
‘ relative or | appropriate [
‘ ‘ | employee | |
| | i ' ‘ consequent to this
Company is in the
‘ ‘ .' ‘ ‘ process for change of
j ! | | name.
Land with | 4220 | Dalmia OCL No i Since Ir Title deed registered
respect to | | Limited January 2023 | in the name of
Bhilai I | Dalmia OCL
manufacturing ‘ Limited. The
unit Company is in the
| process of getting
Building of 283.60 No Since the name changed in
Bhilai ’ January 2023 | the title deed
manufacturing | ' | consequent to
unit | il | change of name of
[ the Company to RHI
i Magnesita India
| | | | Refractories
| | i | Limited.
Leasehold 8 | Dalmia Bharat | No | Since | Management is in
land with | 245730 | Refractories | | January 2023 | the process of
respect to Limited registering long-
Dalmiapuram ‘ term lease in the
manufacturing | | | | name of RHI
unit ‘ Magnesita India
i | Refractories
| 2,909.93 | No | Since | Limited.
Building of ] January 2023
Dalmiapuram |
manufacturing
unit
Leasehold 8 Dalmia Bharat | No Since Management is in
land with 03393 | Refractories January 2023 | the process of
respect to Limited registering long-
Rajgangpur term lease in the
manufacturing name of RHI
unit Magnesita India
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Description | Gross Title deeds | Whether | Period held | Reason for not
of property - | carrying | held in the | promoter, | -indicate being held in the
value (Rs. | name of director range, name of the
l in lakhs) or their I where Company
‘ ' ; relative or ‘ appropriate
| | | employee | |
- i 2,698.60 | | No | Since | Refractories
Building of , January 2023 | Limited.
! Rajgangpur | ‘ l
| manufacturing | ,
unit ' | ‘
f ! i ' i
| Building of | 663.06 | DalmiaSeven | No | Since | Leasehold deed of
Katni [ | Refractories | January 2023 J land on which
manufacturing | | Limited ' building is
unit II ‘ | constructed is
[ | registered in the
‘ [ | name of Dalmia
' ' ' ' | Seven Refractories |
' ‘ Limited (name
| | changed to RHI
i : . ! Magnesita Seven
| | i - | Refractories
E | i | Limited).
Total 17,310.61 | i : .

(d)The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
Assets) and Intangible Assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if
the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets) or Intangible Assets does not arise.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in the Financial Statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory, excluding stocks with third parties, has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory.
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(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,

in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly
returns or statements with such banks, which are not in agreement with the unaudited books of
account as set out below:

!
|

l

|
| Name | Aggregate | Nature of | Nature of | Quarter | Amount Amount | Difference | Reasons for |
| of the | working | Current | current | ended disclosed | as per | (Rs. in | difference '
Bank | capital | Asset asset | as per | books of | lakhs) | |
‘ | limits offered as | underlying quarterly | account |
' sanctioned | Security | quarterly | return/ (Rs. in .
‘ | (Rs. in | (Rs in i return/stat i statement | lakhs) | ;
| | lakhs) 1 akl-ls) ‘- ement i (Rs. in | [
_ | . 1 | lakhs) . i
| | | | | 1 1
gz:k ( RO Current Trade ‘ June 30, 5,563.00 | 15,824.24 10,261.24 | Trade receivables 1
Limited assets receivables 2024 more than 9o days
, HSBC and receivable
Bank ‘ |l from related i
and | . , | | | parties havenot |
Kotak . | | been considered
s ‘ : J ‘ in return. ‘
' | r | B |
! l | Trade ! June 30, | 16,079.00 | 19,737.98 3,658.98 | Provision of |
| | | payables | 2024 | | expenses and |
| l i ‘ ; | payable for |
‘ ' | ; | services have not |
' | | ' | been considered
‘ I ‘ in return.
] l i
! Trade | September | 10,364.53 | 18,856.72 84,92.19 I Trade receivables ‘
! . receivables | 30, 2024 | more than 9o days
| | and receivable |
‘ from related |
parties havenot |
‘ [ been considered |
| | in return. |
[
Trade | September | 18,271.00 | 19,496.61 1,063.89 Provision for
payables 30, 2024 expenses and

payable for

| services have not

been considered

in return.
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Name of | Aggregate Nature of | Nature of | Quarter | Amount Amount | Difference | Reasons for
the working Current current ended disclosed as per | (Rs. in | difference
Bank capital Asset asset as per | books of l lakhs) l|
limits offered as | underlying quarterly account
sanctioned | Security | quarterly ‘ return/ (Rs. in ‘
| (Rs. in . | return/stat | | statement | lakhs) | | '
(Rs. in | , A - |
lakhs) lakhs) ement | (Rs. in ‘ I , ‘
| | | lakhs) | “
| | I | | | g |
Axis -' 48,000.00 | | [ I | ' ]
| Bank ’ ’ Current Trade | December | 12,941.00 | 19,019.27 | 6,078.27 Trade .
|i Limited , assets ‘ receivables ‘ 31, 2024 | | receivables |
HSBC | ‘ | | more than 90 !
Bank and ' | | | | days and
Kotak | : [ [ l l receivable
Bank [ | I from related |
| parties have |
not been |
‘ considered in
| | | | | return. |
I T T T 1 1
: Trade ! December ‘ 17,630.82 18 590.91 9,60.09 Provision of
f payables I} 31, 2024 ]| | expenses and
| | I | ! ! . ! payable for
i i | | | | | ; | services have
i _ ' | ! i ! | | not been _
. | | | | I considered in |
| ! | | | ! return. l
i I | .l
Return is filed
Trade | March 31, 9190.49 | 15,499.69 6,309.20 A ‘
I receivables 2025 | | considering
numbers as |
' per the '
provisional |
| Financial
’ i Statements.
i . [ | . |
Trade March 31, 13,031.54 13,995.49 | 964.95 Retu}‘ 5 IS.' o [
Payables 2025 considering .
| numbers as
I per the |
provisional
Financial
Statements.

(Also, Refer Note 36 to the Financial Statements).
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iii.(a) The Company has not made any investment but has granted unsecured loans to few employees. The
aggregate amount during the year and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to
such loans are as per the table given below:

T

Loans
: Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
|Aggregate amount granted during the year [ 71.81
- Loans to employees
[Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above 71.81
case
- Loans to employees

(Also, Refer Note 4(f) to the Financial Statements)

The Company does not have any joint ventures or associate companies. The Company has not granted
any secured / unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firm, LLPs or any
other parties or stood guarantee or provided any security to companies, firm, LLPs or any other
parties.

(b

4

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted, are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(¢) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated, and the
parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated. The loans provided are interest free and
hence the question of payment of interest does not arise.

(d) In respect of loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans which have fallen due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans/advances in nature of
loan.

(f) There were no loans/ advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including to
promoters/ related parties other than loan granted to employees. In respect of the loans granted
during the year to employees, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the
same were not repayable on demand.

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered
under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). In our opinion, the Company
has complied with the provision of Section 186 of the Act, in respect of the investment made.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its certain products and services.
We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (2) In our opinion, except for the dues in respect of Stamp Duty, the Company is regular in depositing
the undisputed statutory dues, including professional tax, goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, duty of customs, labour welfare fund and other
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. The extent of the arrears of statutory
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viii.

dues outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable are as follows:

Name of ‘ Nature | Amount | Period to Due date ‘ Date of Remarks,

| a

the statute | of dues | (Rs.In which the | l Payment | if any ‘

| | lakhs) | amount : ' | |

' : | relates i ; : .
' 1 | ' |

| Registration | Stamp 2,467.02 2022-23 | January 04, | Not | - |

’ Act,1908 | Duty ' ,' 2023 | applicable ‘

On November 19, 2022, Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited (‘DBRL’) entered into a business
transfer agreement (BTA) with the Company to transfer the entire Indian Refractory business of
DBRL to the Company. The stamp duty is payable on acquisition of immovable property and the
mining rights by the Company as per BTA.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

(e)

interest to any lender during the year.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful

Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Inour opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(Also, Refer Note 36(x) to the Financial Statements).

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,

and on an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries during the year. The Company did not have any joint ventures or associate companies
during the year.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. The Company did not have any joint ventures or associate companies during the year.

x. (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xi.(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of
the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has received
whistle-blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on
our audit and reporting under this clause.

xil. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiil, The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures”
specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit
Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause
3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV, In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d} In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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XVii.

XViil.

XIX.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Refer Note 35 to the Financial Statements), ageing and expected
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company was not required to spend any amount during the year for Corporate Social
Responsibility under Section 135(5) and 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly, there is no amount unspent
as at March 31, 2025 and the reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

WP‘“”M j

Anurag
Partner

Khandelwal

Membership Number: 078571

UDIN: 25078571BMOCES2289
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025



RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amount in Rs. lukhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Asat As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plont and equipment 3(a) 21,030.92 22.469.65
Right-of-use assets 3(b) 10,182.46 10,471.97
Capital work-in-progress 3(a) 1,362.42 1,334.23
Goodwill 3(c) 48,950.30 48,950.30
Other intangible assets 3(c) 74.,915.37 79,574.38
Pinancial ussels
(i) Investiments 4(a) 15,440.75 15,440.75
(i) Other financial assets 4(b) 328.84 375.74
Deferred tax assets (not) 5 ,230.01 2,150.25
Other non-gurrent assets 6 575.78 595.85
Total non-current assets 177.016.85 181,372.12
Current assets
Inventories 7 27,823.50 27,184 .43
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4(c) 17,101.03 17,567.41
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4(d) 1,039.32 660.80
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 4(e) = 7591
(iv) Other financial assets 4(b 120.58 80.35
Contract assets 4(g) 2,754.79 4,224.30
Other current assets 6 4.584.07 7,734.59
Total current assets 53.423.29 57.527.79
Total assets 230.440.14 238.890.91
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 8(a) 10,453.11 10,453.11
Other equity 8(b) 165,016.31 167,206.12
Total equity 175,469.42 177.6590.23
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9 21,548.24 23,365.60
(ii) Lease liabilities 3(b) 8,215.19 7,713.11
Provisions 14 288.64 1,331.75
Total non-current liabilities 20,052.07 32.,410.46
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9 2,687.50 4,848.15
(ii) Lease liabilities 3(b) 636.54 653.46
(iii) Trade payables 10
(a) Total oulslanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises 1,558.71 2,338.43
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 12,194.27 13,918.73
enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 11 1,789.64 2,193.07
Contract liabilities 12 750.79 45573
Other current liabilities 13 3,784.54 4,097.06
Provisions 14 1,516.66 325.59
Total current liabilities 24,918.65 28.830.22
Total liabilities 54.970.72 61,240.68
Total equity and liabilities 230.440.14 238.890.901

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

peot Ww:i

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership No: 078571

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited

]
L
Parmod Sagar Azim Sved

Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN- 06500871) (DIN - 10641934)

L}
Abhishek Bajaj Bobby Mehndiratta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

3 A54443)

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 15 87,370.73 102,443.18
Other income 16 2,226.83 565.46
Total income 89,597.56 103,008.64
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 17 37,750.33 42,651.35
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18 12,477.28 14,445.72
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 19 (134.87) 2,057.59
Employee benefits expense 20 12,807.04 13,805.82
Finance costs 21 3,102.07 4,689.62
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 11,344.79 10,479.21
Other expenses 23 16,453.76 18,461.21
Total expenses 93,800.40 106,590.52
Loss before exceptional items and tax (4,202.84) (3,581.88)
Exceptional itern
Impairment loss on goodwill 24 31,725.63
Loss before tax (4,202.84) (35,307.51)
Income tax credit:
- Deferred tax credit 5 (2,056.23) (801.40)
Total tax credit (2,056.23) (801.40)
Loss for the year (2,146.61) (34,506.11)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (57.73) (160.70)
- Income tax relating to the above 5 14.53 40.44
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (43.20) (120.26)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,189.81) (34,626.36)
Basic loss per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each share) (Rs.) 26 (2.05) (34.17)
Diluted loss per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each share) (Rs.) 26 (2.05) (34.17)

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

hai gt

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership No: 078571

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited

F]

L@*é%g_

Azim Syed
Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN- 06500871) (DIN - 10641934}

BHE

Abhishek Bajaj
Chief Financial Officer

Bobby Mehndiratta
Company Secretary
(ACS - A54443)

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amount in Rs. lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Particulurs Notes

Year ended
March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax (4,202.84) (35,307.51)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 11,344.79 10,479.21
Interest income 16 (46.59) (79.93)
Allowance/(writeback) for doubtful export incentives receivable (Net) 2; 166.09 -
Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables (Net) 2 72.16 124.99
Bad debts written off 2. 113.43 381.86
Amortisation of mines 23 658.63 1,118.92
Impairment loss on goodwill 2, - 31,725.63
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back 16 (1,880.51) (134.17)
Finance costs 21 3,102,07 4,689.62
Profit on property, plant and equipment sold / scrapped (Net) 16 (0.67) (6.33)
Net unrealised foreign exchange (loss)/Gain 57341 112.19
Operating profit before working capital changes 0.001.97 _13,104.48
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (639.07) 3.722.26
Decrease in ttade receivables 1,100.92 4,666.20
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets-current (23.53) 557.42
Decrease in other current assets 155.68 1,930.57
Decrease / (Increase) in contract assets 1,469.51 (2,141.86)
Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets-non current 16.90 (375.74)
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets (3.41) 28.72
(Decrease) in trade payables (2,057.81) (1,441.35)
{Decrease) in other financial liabilities (7.16) (1,027.49)
Increase / (Decrease) in contract liabilities 29506 (1,711 63)
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities (128.35) 98.34
Increase in provisions #8.035 180.66
Cash generated from operations 10,198.76 17.587.58
Income tax paid (Net) 188 (108:69)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities (A) 10,212,643 17.478.89
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in Subsidiary (Refer note 38) - (6,184.75)
Payment for acquisition of business (Refer note 27) - (9,080.25)
Decrease / (Increase) in other bank balances (64 24)
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,685.24)
Proceeds from sale of provertv. plant and eauipment and intangible assets 154.80
Interest received 111.80
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) (2.703.26) {17,747.88)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares - 15.638.35
Proceeds from cuirent botrowings 17,977.05 -
Repayment of current borrowings (21.712.04) (60,299.65)
Principal repayment of lease liabiiilies (26.69) (52.97)
Interest repayment of lease liabilities (11.17) (637.76)
interest paid (3:268.01) (2941421

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing activities (C) (7.040.80)

(18.29:3.95)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 378.52 (18,562.44)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 660.80 19.223.24
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,049,322 660.80
Non Cash investing activities

- Acquisition of right-of-use-assets (Refer nole 3(b)) - 372

- Capilalisation of mining rights (Refer note 3(c)) 2,170.12 -
Cash and cash equivalent included in the cash flow statement
comprise of the following:
Balances with banks

- 1n current accounts 1.039.32 660.80
1.OZ0. 32 bho.80
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’
The aboye Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Reglstrution Number: 0127543/ N500016 RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited .
4
O -
Anurag Khandelwal \Y
Partner )
Membership No: 078571
4

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025

Bobiby Mehndiratta

Company Secretary
(ACS - A54443)




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN: U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited (formerly known as Dalmia OCL Limited) was
incorporated on October 05, 2018. The registered office of the company is located at
Dalmiapuram, Lalgudi District Tiruchirapalli, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 621651. The
Company is in the business of manufacturing and selling of refractories, monolithic, high
alumina bricks, castable and pre-cast shapes. The Company has manufacturing operations over
four locations i.e. Rajgangpur (Odisha), Dalmiapuram (Tamil Nadu), Khambalia (Gujarat) and
Bhillai (Chattisgarh) in India.

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on
May 27, 2025.

2.1 Basis of Preparation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ‘the Act’ [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
which have been measured at fair value:

e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

(ii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015 via notifications dated August 12, 2024, and September 09, 2024, to introduce the
new Ind AS 117 i.e "Insurance Contracts" and amended the Ind AS 116 i.e. Leases, respectively.
Both are effective from April 01, 2024.

This new standard and the aforesaid amendment did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised and are not expected to affect the current or future periods.

(iv) Functional and presentation currency:
The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is the functional currency
of the Company. All amounts are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise stated.

(v) Current versus non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

2,2 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of
operations during the reporting period. The actual results could differ from those estimates.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN: U26100TN2018PLCi125133
Notes to Financial Statements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the
following estimates, assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Financial Statements:

(1)) Impairment of assets

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash
flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating
results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The
estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate. These growth rates are consistent with
forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which CGU operates.

(1) Customer relationship (Intangible assets)
Customer relationships recognised in the course of purchase price allocations of acquired
business. The management believes that the value assigned are reasonable.

(iii) Contingencies

The management’s judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if
any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

(iv) Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible.

(v) Employee benefit obligations

The Company’s retirement benefit obligations are subject to a number of assumptions including
discount rates, attrition, salary growth and mortality rate. Significant assumptions are required
when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact
on the amount recorded in the Financial Statements. The Company sets these assumptions
based on previous experience and third party actuarial advice. The assumptions are reviewed
annually and adjusted following actuarial and experience changes.

2.3 Material Accounting Policies
(i) Property Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the
useful lives of assets as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to
useful lives as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for few cases.
Based on past experience and internal technical evaluation, the management believes that these
useful lives represent the appropriate period of usage and therefore, considered to be
appropriate for charging depreciation.

. Charlereg
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN: U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Class of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 5-26 years
Plant and equipment 5-24 years
Office equipment* 2-10 years
; Furniture and fixtures 2-9g years
1 Vehicles | 2-8 years
E | 3-10 years

Computers Peripherals

*includes computers peripherals.

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of financial
year considering the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review
and residual life is adjusted prospectively.

(ii) Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable
that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of
the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. Following
initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

a) Software

Software are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are
amortised over the period of license. Intangible Assets are amortised at straight line basis as
follows:

Software 3-4 years

b) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of business is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised
but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment Josses.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN: U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(iii)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

c¢) Customer relationships

Customer relationships were acquired as part of business combination (refer note 28 for
details). They are recognised at the fair value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently
amortised on a straight-line based on the timing of the projected cash flows of the contract over
their estimated useful lives.

Customer relationships - 10 — 20 years
Impairment of assets

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life is not subject to amortisation and istested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that this might be
impaired. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(iv) Revenue recognition

At the inception of the contract, the Company identifies the goods or services promised in the
contract and assesses which of the promised goods or services shall be identified as separate
performance obligations. Promised goods or services give rise to separate performance
obligations if they are capable of being distinct. Where the customer expects supply of refractory
material and its related services together to produce the steel, the management has determined
that both supply of goods and services are not distinct and the arrangement is considered to have
only one single performance obligation.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price allocated to that performance obligation, which is the expected consideration
to be received, to the extent that it is highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal
of revenue in future periods. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, at the
inception of the contract, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer.

(a) Sale of products

The Company manufactures and sells a range of refractories, monolithics, bricks and ceramic
paper. Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. No significant element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 15 days to 120 days, which is consistent
with market practice. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN: U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

(b) Total Refractories Management Services
Revenue from contracts for total refractory management services is recognised over time using
the output-oriented method (e.g. quantity of steel produced by the customer). The ma nagement
has determined that both supply of goods and services are not distinct as the customer expects
total refractory management services from the Company, which includes supply of refractory
material and its related services to produce steel, thus, the arrangement is only one single
performance obligation.

(c) Sale of Services
Revenue from services is recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards completion of service, because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Company.

The Company recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied
performance obligations and reports these amounts as other liabilities. Similarly, if the
Company satisfies a performance obligation before it receives consideration. the Company
recognises either a contract asset or a receivable, depending on whether something other than
the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3(a):
Capital work-in progress

(A) Aging of capital work-in progress:

As at March 31, 2025

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Amounts in capital work-in progress for

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total

1 year years years 3 years
(i) Projects in progress 1,362.42 - . - 1,362.42
(i) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,362.42 - - - 1,362.42
As at March 31, 2024

Amounts in capital work-in progress for

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total

1 year years years 3 years
(i) Projects in progress 1,286.00 48.23 - - 1,334.23
(ii) Projects temporarilv suspended - - = = =
Total 1,286.00 48.23 - - 1,334.23

(B) Completion schedule for capital work-in-progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost

compared to its original plan:

As at March 31, 2025

To be completed in

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
(1) Projects in progress
Project A - Basic Tunnel Kiln 653.04 - - - 653.04
Project B - Electrical skew press 450.95 - - - 450.95
Project C - Ball Mill in grinding section 117.53 - - = 117.53
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - =
Total 1,221.52 - - - 1,221.52
As at March 31, 2024
To be completed in
Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
(i) Projects in progress
Project A - Roof fitting 158.16 - - - 158.16
Project B - Server and network management 70.93 - - - 70.93
(i) Projects temporarily suspended = = = 3 e
Total 229.09 - - - 229.09

==
Charlered (i‘:—
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(O]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Note 3(b):
Leases
A. Company as a lessee

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company has taken land and motor vehicles on lease basis.

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A As at As at
Heriiculars Dote March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount recognised in balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets

Land 10,129.69 10,305.04

Motor vehicles 52.77 166.93
Total 10.182.46 10,471.97

Lease Liabilities

Current 636.54 653.46

Non-Current 8,215.19 7,713.11
Total 8.851.73 8,366.57

Addition to the right-of-use assets during the year were Rs.Nil lakhs (March 31, 2024: 3.72 lakhs).

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

) Year ended Year ended

Eacticulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest expense (included in finance costs) 21 616.99 637.76

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 22 205.35 233.20

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 23 455.34 7347

The total cash outflow for leases for the period was Rs. 37.86 lakhs ( March 31, 2024: Rs. 690.73 lakhs)

In applying Ind AS 116, the Company has used the following practical expedient:

Accounting for operating leases with a lease term of less than 12 months are treated as short-term leases.

Extension and Termination option:

Extension and termination options held are exercisable at mutual consent of lessor and lessee.

B. Company as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is acting as a lessor is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

e
£ Chartered 4
e '1‘00
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Note 4(a):
Non-current investments

Investments in equity instruments (unquoted)
- Subsidiary (At cost)

20,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 20,000,000) Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up

£ . 5 B 15,440.
of RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited (Refer note 38) 15:440.75 544075
Total 15.440.75 15.440.75
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 15.440.75 15,440.75
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -
Note 4(b):
Other financial assets- non-current - unsecured, considered good
Deposits with more than 12 months maturity* 328.84 375.74
“Margin money against bank guarantee
Total 328.84 375.74




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. Inkhs, unless otherwisc stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Note 4(c):
Trade receivables*

Trade receisables from contract with customer - billed

12,451.80 14,193.77]

Trade receirables from contract with customer-related parties (Refer note 33) 5.456.89 4,100.14
Less: Loss allovwance (807.66) (735.50)
Total receivables Total 17.101.03 17.567.41
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good-secured - -
Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 17,101.03 17,567.41
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk-unsecured 807.66 735.50
Trade receivables credit impaired - -
Total Gross receivables 17,908.69 18,302.91
Less: Loss allowance {B07.66) 1735.50)

Tatal 17,101.03 17.567.41

“Includes foreign currency receivables amounting to Rs. 612.64 lakhs (March 31. 2024: Rs.1,129.84 lakhs) as at March 31. 2025 which are overdue for more than nine months. The Company has approached the
authorised dealer. under the Foreign Exchange Management (Export of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015 to condone the delay and seeking permission of extension of time period for settloment of these
balances. Pending 1esolution of this matter, no adjustments aie considered neci:ssary in Lhese Financial Statemnents.

Aging of trade receivables

As at March 1, 2025

Particulars
Not Due

Oulsianding for following periods from the due dole

Less than
6 munihs

6 Months -
Lyear

1-2
Menrs

2-3
yeirs

More than
3years

Tolal

Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good
i Trade receivables which have significant increase in
|

credit risk
Credit impaired
Disputed trade recenables
Considered good
Trade receivables which have signilicant increase in
credit risk
Credit impaired

5:323.05

59757

22,63

164.39

5.8

»
W

4.16

7

25.40

115.38

110,07

3658

5.28

79.07

17,101.03
538.80

268.86

10,771.32
Expected loss rate

Less: Loss allowance (18.74)

3:350.97

(27.92)

784.59

(187.02)

355.43

(79.56)

525-45

(410.07)

120.93

(84.35)

17,908.69

(807.66)

Total 10.752.58

5.323.05

5Q97.57

275.87

115.38

16.58

TAOL0T

Aging of trade receivables

As at March 31, 2oy

Particulars
Not Due

Dat ling far foll

Is from the die date

Less than
6 months
I

6 Months - |
Lyear

1-2

Nears

2-3
years

More than
3 vears

Total

Considered good
| Trade receivables which have significant increase in
| creditrisk
Credit impaired
Disputed trade receirvables
Considered good
Trade receivables which hase significant increase in
credit risk
Credit impaired

I

Undisputed trade receivables |
| 8,225.86
|

743710 |

1.577.78

245.90

52133

72.40

4354

94.69

17.567.41
0640.81

94.69

8,225.86
Expected loss rate
Less: Loss allovsance

7,437.10

1,577.78

767.43

{521.53)

210.63

(128.23)

18,302.91

(725.50)

Total 8.225.86

1.577.78

245.90

72.40

17.567.11




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at

March 31, 2024

Note 4(d):
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Total
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as
at the end of the reporting period and prior period.

Note 4(e):

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and having remaining
maturity of less than 12 months*

*Margin money with bank

Total
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as
at the end of the reporting period and prior period.

Note 4(f):
Other financial assets - current
Interest accrued on deposits
Loans and advances to employees [including loans to employees of Rs.
71.81 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil lakhs)]
Total

Note 4(g):

Contract assets

Contract assets (Refer note 15)

Less: Loss allowance (Refer note 29)

Total

1,039.32

660.80

1,039.32

660.80

7591

75-91

31.41
89.17

14.71
65.64

120.58

80.35

3,198.10
(443.31)

5,326.56
(1,102.26)

2,754.79

4,224.30

<)
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Non-current

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 6:
Other Assets

Capital advances 270.26 279.86
Advances other than capital advances
Security deposits 109.65 132.91
Advance income tax 163.94 177.82
Prepaid expenses 31.93 5.26
Total 575.78 595.85
Current
Prepaid expenses* 3,076.39 5,900.57
Balance with government authorities 86.14 170.43
Goods and Services tax input credit recoverable 925.96 802.62
Advances to creditors** 383.92 683.75
Export incentives receivable
- Considered good 111.66 171.57
- Considered doubtful 278.09 112.00
389.75 283.57
Less: Allowance for doubtful export incentives receivable (278.09) (112.00)
111.66 171.57
Others e 5.05
Total 4,584.07 7.734.59
*Note: According to the Business Transfer Agreement (herein referred to as the "BTA") dated November 19,
2022 and amendments thereto, the Company acquired three mines and it's related rights which will be
transferred to the Company, no later than 30 months from the closing date as defined in the said BTA,
subject to necessary government approvals (Refer note - 27), During the year, the Company has capitalised
one mining license. Upon transfer of mining license of the other two mines to the Company, the
prepayments against those two mines shall also be reclassified as Intangible assets.
**includes advances to related parties amounting to Rs. 89.75 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nit lakhs).
Note 7:
Inventories
Raw materials [including goods in transit of Rs. 1,484.36 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 313.00 lakhs)] 14,934.91 14,569.65
Work-in-progress 3,019.39 2,826.26
Finished goods 5,914.58 5,647.07
Stock-in-trade [including goods in transit of Rs. 1.01 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil lakhs)] 1,146.81 1,472.58
Stores and spares [including goods in transit of Nil lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 78.64 lakhs)] 2,807.81 2.668.87
Total 27.823.50 27.184.43

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Provisions for slow moving/obsolete inventory along with write downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 87392 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 1,289.67
lakhs). These were recognised as an expense and included in ‘changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Number of Amount
Shares

Note 8(a):

Equity share capital

Authorised

125,000,000 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 125,000,000) of Rs.10 each 125,000,000 12,500.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

104,531,157 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 104,531,157) of Rs.10 each 104,531,157 10,453.11
(i) Movement in equity sharc capital

Authorised

Particulars Number of shares Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2023 100,000,000 10,000.00

Increase during the year 25,000,000 2,500

Balance as at March 31, 2024 125,000,000 12,500

Increase during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 125,000,000 12,500.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

Balance as at April 01, 2023 82,483,642 8,248.36

Add: Shares issued during the year (Refer note 39) 22,047,515 2,204.75

Balance as at March 31, 2024 104,531,157 10,453.11

Add: Shares issued during the vear - =

Balance as at March 31, 2025 104,531,157 10,453.11

Rights, restrictions and preferences attached to each class of shares

Equity share has a face value of Rs. 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividend, and to share in the proceeds of winding up of the

Company in proportion to number of and amounts paid on shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled one vote.

(i) Details of shares of the Company held by the holding company

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Number of equity shares

Particul As at As at
articurars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
RHI Magnesita India Limited* 104,531,157 104,531,157

Number of cquity shares

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
RHI Magnesita India Limited* 104,531,157 104,531,157

(Holding Company)

RHI Magnesita India Limited*
(Holding Company)

*Includes 6 shares held by nominees of RHI Magnesita India Limited.

Percentage of shares held

100%

100%



RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited

CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8(a) contd:

(v) Details of shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2025
Number of Change Number of Percentage of Percentage
shares at during shares at the | total number of change
Name of Promoter beginning of the year end of year | shares at the end | during the
year of year year
RHI Magnesita India Limited* 104,531,157 - 104,531,157 100.00% 0.00%
As at March 31, 2024
Number of Change Number of Percentage of Percentage
Name of Promoter shares at during shares at the | total number of change
beginning of the year end of year | shares atthe end | during the
year of year year
RHI Magnesita India Limited* 82,483,642 22,047,515 104,531,157 100.00% 0.00%

*Includes 6 shares held by nominees of RHI Magnesita India Limited.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 8(b):
Other equity

Securities premium
Retained earnings
Other reserves
Total

(i) Securities Premium

Opening balance

Add: Securities premium on issue of shares (Refer note 39)
Closing balance

(ii) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Loss for the year

Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax
Closing balance

(iii) Other reserves
Opening balance
Closing balance

206,003.11 206,003.11
(107,056.67) (104,866.86)

66,069.87 66,069.87

165,016.31 167,206.12

206,003.11 162,569.50

= 43,433.61

206,003.11 206,003.11
(104,866.86) (70,240.49)
(2,146.61) (34,506.11)
(43.20) (120.26)

(107.056.67)

(104.866.86)

66,069.87

66,060.87

66,069.87

66,069.87

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities premium

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents accumulated profits of the Company. It can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other reserves

Other reserves represents deemed contribution by holding company on account of acquisition of Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited (DBRL’) in

the year ended March 31, 2023.

RHI MAGH
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

e As at As at
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Note 9:

Borrowings

Non Current
Unsecured - Term Loans

External Commercial Borrowings 24,235.74 24,478.76
Less: Current maturities of external commiercial borrowings (included in current borrowings) 2,394.25) -
Less: Interest accrued (included in current borrowings) (293.25) (1,113.16)
Total 21,548.24 23,365.60
Current - unsecured
Current maturities of external commercial borrowings 2,394.25 =
Working capital loan from bank B 3,734.99
Add: Interest accrued on non-current borrowings 2Q3.25 1,113.16
Total 2,687.50 4.848.15

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost and therefore interest accrued on current borrowings are included in the respective amounts.

External commercial borrowing of EUR 2,60,00,000 was taken from the RHI Magnesita GmbH (fellow subsidiary) during the financial year ended 2022-23,
which carries interest at applicable 6 month Euribor plus 230 basis points. It is repayable in 10 half-vearly instalments starting from June 30, 2025.

Working capital loan of Rs. 3,734.99 lakhs which was outstanding as on March 31, 2024 has been repaid during the year. The loan carried interest in the range

of 8.50% p.a. to 9.30% p.a. and was repayble on demand.

Net Debt Reconciliation

Particulars st ¢ DETS

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings (21,548.24) (23,365.60)
Current borrowings (2,687.50) (4,848.15)
Lease liabilities (8.851.73) (8,366.57)
Cash and cash equivalents 1.039.32 660.80

Net debt

(32,048.15)

(25.919.52)




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited

CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Note t0:
Trade payables*
Trade Payables: Micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 34) 1,558.71 2,338.43
Trade Payables: Others 9,413.09 6,809.22
Trade Payables to related parties (Refer note 33) 2.781.18 7.109.51

Total 13.752.08 16.257.16

*Includes foreign currency trade payables amounting to Rs. 59.23 lakhs as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 218.44 lakhs) which are overdue for more than six months. The Company has approached the
authorised dealer, under the Foreign Exchange Management (Import of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015, to condone the delay and seeking permission of extension of time period for settlement of these
balances. Pending resolution of this matter, no adjustments are considered necessary in these Financial Statements.

A. Aging of trade payables

As at Mareh 31, 2025

Particulars Omstanding for following periods
Unbilled Not Due frowitheldue date Total
Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
1year years vears 3 vears
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 1535541 110 - - 1,558.71
Others 1.497.97 2.886.74 763340 47.45 42.85 12.194.27
Total 1.497.97 | 1.442.15 7.636.70 17.45 42.85 13.752.08
As at March
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Unbilled Not Due fromitheduedate Total
Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
1 vear vears vears 3 vears
Undisputed trade pavables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 2286.51 51.02 - - - 2.338.43
Others 2 6Gh6. &R t T 6,925.63 27711 =2 75 10150 12.01R.72
Total 2.666.58 | 6.977.55 277.11 | 52.75 101.50 | 1625716 |
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(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 11:
Other financial liabilities - current
Employee benefits payable 1,599.91 2,052.03
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment 97.43 106.99
Foreign exchange forward contracts 92.30 34.05
Total 1,789.64 2,193.07
Note 12:
Contract Liabilities
Advances from customers (Refer note 15) 750.79 455.73
Total 750.79 455.73
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(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Note 13:
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues (Contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State 605.22 495.89
Insurance, Goods and Services Tax etc)
Security deposits 548.12 516.76
Interest payable to micro and small enterprises 164.18 151.37
Payable for stamp duty 2,467.02 2,757.88
Others - 175.16

Total 3.784.54 4,097.06
Note 14:
Provisions

Non- Current

(i) Gratuity - 1,045.29
(ii)  Provision against mining rights 288.64 286.46
Total 288.64 1,331.75

Movement in provisions is set out below:-

Provision against mining rights:

Balancc as at beginning of the year 286.46 281.07

Less: Unwinding of discount (Refer note 21) 2.18 5.39

Balance as at end of the year Total 288.64 286.46

Current

(i)  Gratuity 1,100.44 -

(ii) Leave obligations 416.22 325.59
Total 1,516.66 325.59

(i) Leave obligations

The leave obligation cover the Company's liability for earned leave and sick leave. The entire amount of provision of Rs. 416.22 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - Rs.
325.59 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However,
based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leaves or require payment for such leave within the
next 12 months.

Leave obligation not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 356.62 283.00

(i)
(a)

Post employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans including provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of
12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government, The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expensc recognised during the
year towards contribution to provident and other fund is:

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contribution to provident and other funds:
Contribution to Employee state insurance 0.23 9.61
Contribution to Provident fund 278.02 289.36
278.25 298.97

(b)

Defined benefit plan- Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years are cligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes
contribution to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains the target level of funding to be maintained
over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. Gratuity Hability is funded through Gratuity Fund Trust with an insurance
policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

In the current year, entire amount of provision of Rs. 1,100.45 lakhs is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full
amount within the next 12 months.

—
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(A) Changes in Defined Benefit Obligation
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Beuefit paid
Actuarial loss on obligation
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Net defined benefit (asset)/liability

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the vear
Unfunded liability/provision in Balance Sheet

Total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Interest income on plan assets

Total Expense recognised under employee benefits expense (Refer note 20)

Total expense recognised in OCI

Actuarial loss on defined benetit obligation

Actuarial loss of plan assets

Unrecognised actuarial loss/(gain) at the end of year

(B) Actuarial Assumptions:
i) Discounting Rate

i) Future Salary Increase

iii) Retirement Age (Years)
iv) Ages
Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gratuity - Funded
1,748.73 1,587.40
126.16 143.00
115.14 117.15
(197.00) (242.75)
60.09 143.93
1,853.12 1,748.73
703.44 670.71
46.88 49.50
2.36 (16.77)
752.68 703.44
1,853.12 1,748.73
752.68 703.44
1.100.44 1,045.29
126.16 143.00
115.14 117.15
(46.88) (49.50)
194.42 210.65
60.09 143.93
(2.36) 16.77
27-73 160.70
6.40% 6.95%
10% for 1yearand 8%  10% for 2 vears and 8%
thereafter thereafter
60 60
Withdrawal Rate %
10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality rate for gratuity is based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience.

(C) Expected contribution for the next 12 months
1) Service cost
ii) Net interest cost
Total

233.20 126.16
62.97 72.65
206.16 198.81

(D) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.56 years as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 5.90 years). The expected

maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follows:

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Years :

i) oto1Year

ii) 1to2 Year

iii) 2to 3 Year

iv) 3to4 Year

v) 4togYear

vi) 6to 10 years
Total

233.20 184.00
303.71 218.20
313.31 311.31

222.46 278.32
224.56 197.91

1,416.77 771.46

2,714.01 1,961.20




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(E) Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate
a. Discount rate - 0.5% - the liability to increase by
b. Discount rate + 0.5% - the liability to decrease by
Salary increase rate
a. Rate - 0.5% - the liability to decrease by
b. Rate + 0.5% - the liability to increase by

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

47.55
(45.23)

(44.70)
46.53

47.10
(44.80)

(44.37)
46.20

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the Defined benefit recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions

used in preparation, the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(F) Risk Exposures:

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary rate assumption in future will also increase the liability.

Investment Risk: If the plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed

at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

Mortality and disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

(G) Defined benefit liability and employer contribution

The Company monitors the deficit in defined benefit obligation (net off plan assets) and endeavours to meet such deficit within reasonable future. The
objective is to ensure adequate investments of funds, at appropriate time, to generate sufficient corpus for future payments.
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(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Note 15:
Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers
-Sales of products

(1) Finished goods 74,312.10 79,012.55
(ii) Stock-in-trade 8,691.31 16,636.66
- Total refractories management services 2,499.01 4,605.35
- Sale of services 1,237.94 1,365.48
Total (A) 86,740.36 101,620.04

Other operating revenue
Export incentives 109.27 126.15
Scrap sales 521.10 693.86
Others - 3.13
Total (B) 630.37 823.14
Total (A+ B) 87,370.73 102,443.18

Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by geography. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cashflows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Disaggregation of Revenue by Geography

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Within India
Outside India
Total revenue

80,531.47 95,192.84
6,208.89 6,427.20
86,740.36 101,620.04

Timing of Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the customers, which is
determined based on the individual terms agreed in the customer contract.

Revenue from contracts for total refractory management services is recognised over time using the output method (e.g. quantity of steel
produced by the customer).

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Performance obligations

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the customers, which is
determined based on the individual terms agreed in the customer contract. Control is defined as the ability to direct the use and obtain
substantially all the economic benefits from an asset.

For Refractory Management services where the transaction price depends on the customer’s production tonnage the management has
determined that both supply of goods and services are not distinct as the customer expects total refractory management services from the
Company, which includes supply of refractory material and its related services to produce steel. Thus, only one single performance
obligation, the performance of refractory management services, exists. With regard to these contracts, revenue is recognised over time
using the output-oriented method (e.g. quantity of steel produced by the customer).

Revenue from services is recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress towards completion of service, because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Disaggregation by timing for Revenue Recognition Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Point in time 83,003.41 95,649.21
Over the time 3,736.95 5,970.83
Total revenue 86,740.36 101,620.04
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Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

Transaction price is the expected consideration to be received in exchange for transferring goods or services, to the extent that it is highly
probable that there will not be a significant reversal of revenue. For Total Refractory Management Contracts, transaction price depends

on the customer's production performance.

The Company has applied practical expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, it has not disclosed information about remaining performance
obligations wherein the Company has a right to consideration from customer in an amount that directly corresponds with the value to the
customer of entity's performance till date using the output method and for the other contracts which have original expected durations of

one year or less.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract price 86,028.12 100,568.74
Adjustments for:
Claims and Rebates (1,684.99) (1,249.40)
Performance bonus 2,397.23 2,300.70
Revenue from contracts with customers 86,740.36 101,620.04

Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as Contract Asset.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.

Contract assets consist of unbilled revenue which arises when the Company satisfies the performance obligation in the Refractory
Management Services contracts but does not have an unconditional right to consideration as it is dependent on the certification of the

report on the quantity of steel produced.

Contract liabilities consists of advances from customers. Contract liabilities are presented in note 12.

Trade receivables are presented net off impairment loss in note 4(c).

The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the

beginning of the year

Revenue from contract with customers 455.73 2,170.36
Total 455.73 2,170.36
Movement in Contract Assets

Opening balance at the beginning of the vear 4,224.30 2,082.44
Add: Contract assets acquired under business combination (Refer note 27) - -
Add: Revenue recognized during the vear 86,740.36 101,620.04
Less: Invoiced during the year (88,209.87) (99,478.18)
Closing balance at the end of the year 2,754.79 ,224.30
Movement in Contract Liabilities

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 455.73 2,170.36
Add: Collection during the vear 696.24 16,203.51
Less: Gross Sales (401.18) (17,918.14)
Closing balance at the end of the year 750.79 455.73

Significant judgements in the application of the Standard

For Refractory Management Contracts where the transaction price depends on the customer’s production performance, the management
has determined that both supply of goods and services are not distinct as the customer expects total refractory management services from
the Component, which includes supply of refractory material and its related services to produce steel. The customer expects complete
refractory management for the agreed product areas in the steel plant in order to enable steel production. Thus, only one single

performance obligation, performance of refractory management service, exists.

Information about major customers
Revenues from tivo customers represent approximately Rs. 21,169.19 lajhs
revenues.

Mareh 31, 2024: Rs. 17,298.89 lakhs) of the Company’s total




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 16:
Other income

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest inocme

Interest income on financial assets on amortised cost:

- on bank deposits

- on other deposits

- on income tax refund

Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly attributable to such
income)

Net foreign exchange differences
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Insurance claim
Rental income (Refer note 33)
Commission income (Refer note 33)
Miscellaneous income
Total

Note 17:

Cost of raw materials and components consumed
Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Total

Note 18:
Purchases of stock-in-trade

Total

Note 19:
Change in inventories of finished goods, work in-progress and stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year
Work in progress

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work in progress

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Total
Note 20:

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 14)

Gratuity (Refer note 14)

Leave obligation

Staff welfare expenses

Total

34.16 71.78
12.43 8.15
9.98 =
i34.59 32.79
1,880.51 134.17
0.67 6.33
55.65 44.71
72.99 -
20.11 245.70
5.74 21.83
2,226.83 565.46
14,569.65 16,431.47
38,115.59 40,789.53
52,685.24 57,221.00
14,934.91 14,569.65
37.750.33 42,651.35
12,477.28 14,445.72
12,477.28 14,445.72
3,019.39 2,826.26
5,914.58 5,647.07
1,146.81 1,472.58
10,080.78 9,945.91
2,826.26 2,050.51
5,647.07 8,632.41
1,472.58 420.58
9,945.91 12,003.50
(134.87) 2,057.59
11,618.62 12,424.84
278.25 298.97
194.42 210.65
121.32 229.26
594.43 642.10
12,807.04 13,805.82
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Note 21:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Finance costs

Interest expense:

- on external commercial borrowings

- on short term loan

- on cash credit and working capital loan

- unwinding of discount

- Net exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Interest on micro and small enterprises

Others

Note 22:

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Note 23:

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Consumption of packing materials

Power and fuel

Processing charges

Rent (Refer note 3(b))

Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

- Buildings

- Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Communication costs

Travelling and convevance

Printing and stationery

Freight and forwarding

Advertising and other expenses

Legal and professional fees (Refer note 23(a))
Commission on sales

Directors sitting fees

Bad debts written off

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables (net)
Allowance for doubtful export incentives receivable (net)
Bank charges

Information and technology expenses
Amortisation of mines

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Total

Total

1,462.13 1,533.02
- 551.70
30.28 942.93
2,18 5.39
954.82 837.83
616.99 637.76
34.81 129.37
0.86 51.62
3,102.07 4,689.62
4,310.48 4,020.36
205.35 233.20
6,828.96 6,225.65
11,344.79 10,479.21
1,014.77 520.41
990.07 1,017.40
4,684.30 5,361.57
1,775.08 1,598.13
455.34 73.47
1,227.22 1,573.03
86.24 306.96
143.78 3.23
490.76 387.97
69.95 150.26
55.35 30.21
348.65 625.48
7.87 5.91
1,984.23 2,526.85
15.39 27.44
719.92 1,393.07
220.82 111.89
3.50 6.60
113.43 381.86
72.16 124.99
166.09 -
23.82 27.76
841.61 737.98
658.63 1,118.92
284.78 349.82
16,453.76 18,461.21

Note 23 (a): Legal and professional fees include payment to auditors as under :

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Payment to auditor (excluding GST) comprise:
To statutory auditor

- for audit

- for certificate

- reimbursement of expenses

Total

90.00 87.50
1.50 -
2.38 5.33

93.88 92.83




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Note 24:

Exceptional Item

Impairment loss on goodwill Z 31,725.63

Total - 31,725.63

There are no exceptional items for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The Company tests investment in subsidiary for impairment if there are indicators that investment in subsidiary might be impaired.

In accordance with accounting standard, management have performed an annual impairment assessment as at March 31, 2025 using the value in use (“VIU”)
approach to determine the recoverable value of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”).

The Company tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill might be impaired. The Company including its
plants at all locations, has been identified as a single Cash Generating Unit (CGU) under Ind AS 36 which is also the single operating and reportable segment.
Hence, for impairment testing, goodwill acquired through business combination is monitored by the management at the company level as a single CGU.

The impairment assessment determined that the CGU recoverable value exceeded the carrying amount by Rs. 9,356.43 lakhs, which indicates no requirement
for recognition of impairment. The increase in headroom has largely been driven by the business strategy aligment over the course of the year. It was further
determined that this increase did not require the reversal of the previously recorded impairment loss as the underlying drivers for the increased headroom do
not support a reversal, after considering the unwind of the discount rate and the impact of depreciation and amortisation ot impaired assets.

For the current financial year, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit was determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of
assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates arc consistent with forecasts included in industry reports
specific to the industry in which each company operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions used for the estimation:

Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended
2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate (Weighted average cost of capital) 12.40% 12.30%

Growth rate (for terminal value) 5.00% 5.00%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the ahove key assumptions as follows:

Assumption Approach used to determine values

Discount rate (Weighted average cost of capital) The Discount rate (Weighted average cost of capital) of a company is the weighted average
of the costs of its equity and its debt. Cost of equity is calculated based on the risk-free rate
for a ten-vear Zero coupon vields curve adjusted tor risk premium to reflect both the
increased risk of investing in equities and the systematic risk specific to operations of|
company. Cost of debt is calculated based on the rate obtained from the market.

Growth rate for terminal value Growth rate over the five-vear forecast period; based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

Revenue growth rate Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on management's
expectation of market development.
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Sensitivity analysis for key assumptions:

Assumptions Year ended %age Impact on value in use
March 31, 2025 change

Discount rate (Weighted average o

. ; .90 lakhs.

cost of capital) 12.40% + 50 bps Decrease by 11,713.90 lakhs

Growth rate for terminal value 5.00% - 50 bps Decrease by 7,978.60 lakhs.

Assumptions Year ended %age Impact on value in use
March 31, 2024 change

Discount rate (Weighted average JF i )

o) 12.30% + 50 bps Decrease by 12,155.61 lakhs.

Growth rate for terminal value 5.00% - 50 bps Decrease by 7,470.60 lakhs.

Exceptional items for the year ended March 31, 2024 consist of:

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the management has tested the goodwill for impairment and based on comparison of the recoverable amount of CGU
with the carrying value, the Company has recognised an impairment loss amounting to Rs. 31,725.33 lakhs. This loss has been disclosed as a separate line item
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The impairment is primarily due to a weaker market environment in export geographies where demand has fallen significantly. Weaker demand is further
exacerbated by strategic decisions to step away from low value customers and from restricted markets. Despite the realisation of synergies post-acquisition, the
expected profitability of the acquired entity has been rationalised to reflect the rebasing of benefit schemes and a higher rate of inflation in local market costs
which cannot be passed to customers. The above underlying impacts are expected to persist over the near and medium term, which has led to the downward
revision of cash flow expectations underlying the valuation of the acquired entity.
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Note 25:
Income tax expense

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax
Deferred tax credit (2,056.23) (801.40)
Total deferred tax credit (2,056.23) (801.40)
Total income tax credit (2,056.23) (801.40)
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by tax rate
Loss before income tax credit (4,202.84) (35,307.51)
Tax at the rate of 25.168% (Previous year : 25.168%) (1,057.77) (8,886.20)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Adjustments for tax of prior periods (748.55) -
Adjustment of deferred tax on loss allowance not claimed in earlier year (111.57) -
Impairment loss on goodwill - 7,984.71
Interest on micro and small enterprises 8.76 38.10
Adjustment for contract assets written off during the vear (165.84)
Others 18.74 61.99
Income Tax Expense (2,056.23) (801.40)
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Note 26:
Earnings per share

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Basic loss per share (Rs.) (2.05) (34.17)

(b) Diluted loss per share (Rs.)* (2.05) (34.17)

Loss used for calculating earnings per share

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating Basic Loss per share (2,146.61) (34,506.11)

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating Diluted Loss per share (2,146.61) (34,506.11)

Weighted average number of shares used as denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating Basic Loss per share 104,531,157 100,985,687

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating Diluted Loss per share 104,531,157 100,985,687

*There are no dilutive potential equity shares
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Note 27: SAI

On November 19, 2022, Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited (DBRL") entered into a business transfer agreement (BTA) with the Company to transfer the entire Indian refractory business of
DBRL to the Company. On November 19, 2022, the RHI Magnesita India Limited (RHIMIL") entered into a Share Swap Agreement with the Company and DBRL to acquire all outstanding shares
of the Company. On January 04, 2023, the business transfer between DBRL and the Company was completed as per the terms and condilions of the BTA. As part of this acquisilion the Company
has also acquired indirectly 51% share holding in RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited (formerly known as Dalmia Seven Refractories Limited) (RHIMSRL").

Acquired business primarily engaged in manufacturing and supply of Castables, pre-cast shapes like lances, snorkels, other refractory products and supplying to core industries namely cement,
steel and others and have five manufacturing facilities.

As per the BTA the Company acquired the India refractory business by discharging the purchasing consideration as referred below:-

(i) Cash consideration amounting to Rs. 48,409.22 lakhs (including working capital consideration).
(it) 82,483,642 equity shares of the Company to DBRL at an issue price of Rs. 207.04-

Post completion of acquisition by the Company, as per the share swap agreement, on January 05, 2023, RHIMIL completed the purchase of 100% shareholding in the Company. RHIMIL has
discharged the consideration by issuance and allotment of 27,000,000 fresh equity shares of the RHIMIL to DBRL amounting to Rs. 236,844 lakhs. The shares have been issued by RHIMIL at
the market rate of January 05, 2023 of Rs. 877.20 per share.

This transaction has been accounted for as per the acquisition method specified in Ind AS 103 and accordirgly. the total purchase consideration of Rs. 285,253 22 lakhs has been determined as
the sum of the cash consideration of Rs. 48,409 22 lakhs and the value of shares issued by RHIMIL to DBRL of Rs. 236.844 lakhs. The difference of Rs. 146.745.80 lakhs between the purchase
consideration of Rs, 285,253 22 lakhs and fair value of net assets of Rs. 138,507.42 lakhs has been recognised as goodwill. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred, The goodwill is
attributable to the workforce and capability of the business to economies of scale expected from combining the operations resulting in increase in profitability of the acquired business It will not
be deductible for tax purpose

During the year ended March 31,2024, the Company had completed the determination of the fuir value of assets and iabilities acquired as part of the above acquisition. The fair value of the assets
and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as follows: -

(All amount in Rs. lnkhs, unless otherwise stuted)
Fair value post
o= Measurement B
Particulars Notes Pron‘sto.nal amount as at period completion of
acquisition date . measurement
adjustments "
period
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 25,167.55 - 25,167.55
Right-of-use assets 10,863.84 - 10,863.84
Capital work-in-progress 1,148.75 - 1,148.75
Other Intangible assets [6)] 86,343.26 900.00 87,243.26
Financial assets
(i) Investments 9,256.00 - 9,256.00
Other non-current assets 45.90 - 43.90
Total non-current assets 132,825.30 900.00 133.725.30
Current assets
Inventories 35,662.72 - 35.662.72
Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 25,383.26 - 25.383.26
(ii) Bank balances other than (i) above 11,52 38.00 49.52
{i1i) Loans 28.13 - 28.13
(iv) Other financial assets 378.83 - 378.83
Other current assets (i) 1128449 (1,200.00) 10,084.49
Total current nssets 72,748.95 (1,162.00) 71,580,905
Total Assets assumed 205,574.25 (262.00) 205,312.25
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings . .
{ii) Lease liabilities 8.376.54 8.376.54
Provisions 1,231.90 . 1.231.90
Deferred lax liabilities (net) (i) 3.818.38 (3,723.25) 95.13
Other non-current liabilities = - =
Total non-current liabilities 13.426.82 (3.723.25) 9.703.57
Current liabilities
Financiul liabililies
(i) Borrowings 16,178.94 - 16,178.94
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,475 33 b 1,475:33
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 34,547.99 - 34.547.99
(iv) Other financial liabilities - g .
Contract liabilities - - -
Provisions 1,204.00 - 1,204.00
Other current liabilities 3.657.00 38.00 3,695.00
Total current liabilities 57.063.26 38.00 57.101.26
Total liabilities assumed 70.490.08 (3,.685.25) 66.804.83
Net identifiable net assets acquired at fair value (A) 135.084.17 3,423.25 138.507.42
Purchase Consideration (B) 285,253.22 - 285,253.22
Goodwill acquired on acquisition (B-A) 150.169.05 (3.423.25) 146.745.80

Measurements period adjustments are on account of changes in the assumptions used in the determination of fair valuation of customer relationships and mining rights and reassessment of
deferred tax liability on the fair value of property, plant and equipment.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 28:
Fair value measurement

Financial Instruments by category

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stuted)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets

Non-Current

Other financial assets - 328.84 - 375.74

Current

Trade receivables . 17,101.03 - 17,567.41

Cash and cash equivalents - 1,039.32 - 660.80

Bank balances other than above - - - 7591

Other financial assets - 120.58 - 80.35

Total financial assets - 18.589.77 - 18.760.21

Financial liabilities

Non-Current

Borrowings 21,548.24 - 23,365.60

Lease liabilities - 8,215.19 - 7,713.11

Current

Borrowings - 2,687.50 - 4,848.15

Lease liabilities - 636.54 = 653.46

Trade payables - 13,752.98 - 16,257.16

Other financial liabilities - 1,789.64 - 2,193.07

Total financial liabilities = 48.620.00 - 55.020.55]

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, current borrowings, other current financial assets & liabilities, bank balances and cash and cash equivalents are

considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of non-current financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is substantially same as their carrying amount.




“10J papaodd 10u pue FUIPULISINO SARP OZT UL SSA] £[JUBLND D11 BY)] ASOY} FUIPNIUL PASILA0IDL SSUUIADI JO SSO] AWLDJI[ DIUD DY) IPAOI O] JUDIDIINS ST ‘SISA[RUR dA1199][02 U0 paseq ‘uotstaoad SiyJ, "SisA[eue Su1se uo paseq pandwnd
se ‘uorswold jsnlpe 01 pasu 2y S1EN[IAS 0] SASLD YaNs JO S PUR 98] FUIALIPUN Y] SMALIDI TUBUIITRURLL D[} “IFIOISND 9G] JO SI01IRY IR[ILLS 12110 10 Krd 10U O] UONUBIUL ‘SSAUISI] UT [[RJUMOP ‘UoNTsod [ProuBTYy FunPRIOs]ap A1)
MOQR 9DUSPIAS d10ads ST 31511 1ADDM ‘SI) SAPISA "SIQIP [J1qUOP Pue peq 10] uolsLaoxd 10 way) JOpISued pue pud ponad Je st S4ep 0FT ULY) A10W 10§ SUIPURISING SoouL[Eq FUIARY S101qep FuLMaLal Jo astprad a1 sey Auedwioy) oy}
‘SPIqEALSIRT BPEN WO 1940031 UOU [PHIURYOd LT JO YSW B[} SSAIPPE O, 'SIICIU0D JO $5dA1 UL 91} 10] SAIARAIIIA 1 APRI] DY ST SIHISLINITIRYD YSLI dUIES DY) A[erjueIsqns asey pur uonvdiyqo sdueutiojiad jo uonadwod uo anp Surpuad
£auour uONURIAI PUE ANUIAAL PIJ[IQUN 0] DIB[AL SASST IR0 YL, *anp 15vd SLRP B] PUR SINSLIAIRILYD SU IPDII PAIRYS U0 PAseq PAdNoIF Usaq IARY STASSE 19TIIUOD PUE SI[RAIRIDI APRL) ‘S350 11paId Patpadxa ay) ANseau o],

‘TudurLIedap 01110 11pa1d s Aurdwo) sy £q L[FUIPIOIIT 135 BIE SWLID] JIPAID [PNPLAIPU] “PAIOTTUOW [1B[NTAT 211 SBIQRAISIDI 10WOISND FUIPURISIIQ) "SO[QRALDIAT
1unodoe jo JuPde pue Sgop peq [eIIOISIY Jo SISA[RUE ‘UOHIPUOD [RIUBUY ALl JUN0IR 0)U Fup{e] SIDWOISND oY1 Jo AN[Iquya1 [erucuy Ay Ruiysgriss ‘sieaotdde uia) 1paxd yFnoryy fuedwio) ayy £q pafeuriu st ySLL {PaId oy,

'S$19SSE 19R1IUCD PUT SqRAISIB APE) WOl AjLreutid S1YSH 1[pa1d By 0] amsodxa wnturxew sy, ‘ssof [rouruyy ojut Junnsal ‘sjuatused Apun Brw 01 uo1eSIqo S11 U 1NEJEp ARWI IAWOISHA 1eY] Anqissod w104y SSLIR YSLI IPDI)

"SUONEIAdO SSAULSN] YY) JO ISTNOD [ULIOU 3] Ul UAATE 24T $9IUTAPE S2Y T, "$0a50[dWd 0) UaATd $0oULAPE pue sueo[ sopnppul Aeuid s19sst [Praueny Y10
*$a10UsBE FUe1 IPA 1D AMSAWOP pue [zuorjeuidut £q paudisse sFunel 11pard Y3y Yitm suonmfsul [eIURLY put jueq yim sysodap sepupur £pofew 11 st jurayiudis 10u st sadue[Rqg yueq pur Jus[eAlnbs [sen pue (sed 1o YSL11paI)

AST NP3 Y

s1sA[eur £11ANISUdS 15212111 JO e
‘[oAd] a1qridanoe ue jt aansodxa 1ou ay3 deay 01 Bulonuow aemday |  s,Junserio) soy ysey| duneoy) Yim sumoriog DRI 1$3I3UT — YSLI TONICA
*£ouanmd dures unIm (MNI) sadna
sojqrdrd pue ss]qeAldNal usAMIA( sddueeq Furumiuiew £q Furdpay jeumeN ur(pu] U1 paIeuIUIouap
-£1855209U PAWIIAP JI S19RITU0D dFurydxa udralo] premio] fupyem o uondo sis{[eue SIAIISUaG| 10U SaNLIqPI| pUE S19SSE
ue im ‘Pad) 3[qeidanae ue 1o aunsadxd jau a1 dasy o} Ruuojuow temsy|  s,8unsEIRIO) MO ySED |e1oueuty pastugoray adueyoxe udi0) — ySLI 1YIC]
saniqey
[PauRUY J81Q pur
“sandr) JuLmoaloq sat el asea| ‘sajqeded
PUR S JIPAID PANIMIWIOD ‘S1dsse prubi] ‘iqsea ayenbape jo Qiiqereay SISEIB (0] MO[J SE) apra], ‘sduimoriog ysu Lipmbr

1S0D posnIoule je
paanseaw sposse eroueuy
INIQ ‘SIASSE PRIIU0)

Y TRW Y] Ul FUIIRT 11PN [ RI[AI 1M SIAWOISND [1IM SSIUISNE “SIO5SE squner ‘SORALIY APEL],

Jo anjea dqgesieal jo Fupojuow Apotad pue sisodap yueq Jo uoneIYISIAALG|  1paI) ‘sisfjeue Sulaly | ‘saduvieq yueq pue yse) YSELIPaI)
woay

Juawafeur iy JUDUIINSBIJA] Auistae sansodxsy ASty

H{sH AY] sadeurW £111ud 341 MOY PUT 0] Pasodxa st ATNUA Y1 YaIM YSLI Jo saaInos 3y sure(dxe jou siyy,

"SUOLESI[O PUR SH[OL T3] PURISIOPUN $39£0[AUID [ 4IIM UL JUSTLOILAUD [O1IUOD DALINIISUOD pur paul[dmsip e ufelurew 0] SWIR ‘sainpasrold pue spiepuess juatuefeueut
pue Junuen sy yinoayy ‘Aurdwio) ayg, “A[Fuipiosar saproed Ay up S9FUBYD A1 193[ja1 PUB SUONIPUOD 1IN U1 SPFURYD 9Y) MALAL Aqearpowrad ‘sonuod pur siuny s sedordde sonuow pue j9s 0] ‘Kurdwo]) ay) £q paney
SYSU Y1 BsA[RUE [HIlt {J1USp] 01 PAYSIQRISa Ale sappjod Juswdrurw YsU 5 (uedwo) ayy, “Jiomowe) juawninurur ysu s Luedwoy) aY) Juruiaaod pue Funysiqrisa 10§ 1jiqisuodsol [[raaA0 a1 sey JuswRSrURW JOWDS s Auedwo) sy,

ASLEINABW pur ¥sur Ajpruby] “fs11 11paId o1 1t asodxa sarjanoe s {uedwo)) ayy,

) RIAL ST [el 15
16T ajoN

SjuauIdB1G [RIDURUL] 03 S9ION

IS Td8T0ZNLO0T9Z()  NID
PONWI SALIOPRIJYY RIpU[ USSR [HY




18 8vF G202 ‘1T Y2IT[\ U0 Sk IDUBMOLIY
(56'859) 1J0-UDNILLM 19SSE 1DRIU0)
93 TOT‘T Yzoz ‘1€ Poary uo se aduvMmo|[V
(1rr'igb‘z) JJO-UBLIM 9SSR [JRIIUO))
€95°¢ £207 ‘10 [tady uo se ddURMOIIY
nInoury saenanIe
(PMIIIS ISLMADYIO0 SSI[UN 'SIP{T] "$Y UL JNOWE [[y) S]OSSE 1ONIIU0D .I0J IDURMO[[Y
99'L0g G207 ‘1% YaIRA UO ST 90URMO[[V
91Tl (£ 310U 19J9y) aduemor|e sSof ul sagucy)
08-SEL Pz0z ‘1€ pary uo se dDUBMO[[Y
66'bar (€2 910U .10J9Y ) FIURMO[R SSO] UL SAFURYD
1$'019 1%0% ‘10 [LIdy Uo ST 99UeMOo[|y
unowry SARNITLIR ]
(POIR1S ASLMIDYIO SSI[UN *SIP|R] "y UL JUNOWR [[y') SI[QRAIINIL IPRI)-SIYIP [NJGNOP J0J IIUBRMOL[Y
otvazv - - - - e otvra‘t (uatLIEduT )¢
19U) SI9SSE 1PRNU0 Jo Junowe Juriiie)

. 13 oo o o . s A WOzt Au:OEthA—Em jo

1 LgSily ovzl Le'g 06°Sh3g |LLLEY orLEbL 98'Swa‘g 1au) AIqEAII21 3pR} J0 Junowe Furtiaes
(9c'zo1'1) - - = =S (9 COT'T) SIASSE 1IBIUOY) - SASSO] P PalaIadxy]
(05°5€2) (¢a'gel) (PL'SL) (85 175) - - O]qRAIIAL APE.L], - SASSO[ 11PALd PAtadxs]
(%t9°59) (%50'006) (%96°29) %0 %0 %8- 2101 550] PR1dddxy]

98-92¢‘S - - - - - 95 9Te'S §1ASST 1ARNUOY) - Junoure JuL{uied sso.1s)
16°30%‘gT €9'01T 11°bg &€bL9L QL LLS"T orLEVL 9g°Saa‘g JIGrAIDIAL APRLT, - o FuLliie) ssoIr)
[e1o], SIBDA & URI) IO SINAA &2 SIRIA -1 AnAA T - SYIUON 9 SYIUOW 9 URY[} SSI'T anp JoON SIR[MOILIR]

Y707 ‘18 oar ] I ST 2DURMO[[E SSO']

G6LYCLm . ~ N y L. 6LPSLen (uoursredwr Jo
JOU) §)ISSE PRNUOD Jo yunowre Suriie)

o101l 86'9€ 8€:G11 Lg-Slz L6466 SO-€RES 86 =S4 07 (uowatedur jo
1311) I[qeALddAI Ipea] Jo Junowre Surliie)

(1Etby) - . - . - [522) S19§SE 10RIIUO)) - SASSO[ 11pald pataadxs]
(99°208) (58°7g) (LO'O1F) (95'6L) (7O"Lg1) (ch'LT) {(ri'gr) J|QRAINAL DPRI], - $ISSO] 11Padd Paadxs]
(%£6°S) (%S 69) (9%Vv0°8L) (%8t'cT) sba- 1= %6 o111 sS0[ patdadxy)
or'gov‘e - - - - - 01°'861°¢ $19SSE 191U - Junoue JuLlied ssoun
69°806‘L1 £6'021 Sb$as 688 651-gL L6'0%ES A 740} D[QBAIDIAL APTT, - Junoun: HuLLLIed §S0.10
™oy, DX ERTIERTITH SIRaA E-3 SIBIA T-1 ANANT - SYJUO[ 9 SUIUOL § ULy} SSI'| anp JoN saenanaed

SZ07 18 [PIR 1R ST 2DURMO[[E SSO7]

16°30%'g1 69°806'L1 feeg,
£9'015 £6°0g1 - EIE TS TR
g Staas sreak £-5
£b Lol [t samad -1
QLLLSY 65yl aeak 1 - SYIUOR 9
orLeb L L6'0GE'S SYIUOWI § UBI] S5 [
98°'5ag'g weLLion NP 10K
tzoz ‘18 yoaep e sy S203 ‘18 Yoavy 1e Sy Arodae)

(P2IRS ASLMIDNIO SSI[UN

‘S sy Ul unowe [jy)

1SI[QRATIDAI APEI) JO HUTIRY

SIU2UIBIN]S [RIDURUL] 0} SIJON

ERISTID IdRIOENLLO0T9ZN) t NID
PO SdII0P RN vipu] BusauSen 1HY



£,

> &
o W iHg
Hz It 4
- =2 =
o\ €& 2 o
S S Q
o e
R 74 LT'6L1 K T CREPAT SRR 010 1Sa1jU]
(SgbLn) [ANYA] écmﬁ mf.o ...:r...i._.ﬂ..ﬂuu.,.mm,__r:: bIIABECAENI]

P20 "1 [oae]y papud ard

SZ0% ‘TE DIRPAIpUD .IRD X

sguimoaaog

(X1 J0 191 SSOT X 10 JO AW RIS uo pordur]

SBUIMO.LI0Q 3BT I|qRLIRA UO LJIANISUAS

“1eak dloym Ay 10) Furpueisino seam polrad Funiodat yy jo pua aip) 1# Fuiprmsino LpIqeiays Jo junowr a1 fununsse paredard s1 s1s{{euar ay) ‘soniqer| sjel Suieoy 10, - SISA[RUR AWATIISUOS

wd 9€°7 Jo peaads ed gt
09°'G98‘CT %EQ supd yodarana 6v'ch6‘ta %66 Jo peatds snid YOgINg sdumorioyg
(%) Mud }saaayug (%) 2101 152191u1
asuveyg SURO[ 230} JO % a8vanar pajydropy avue[ey SURrO[ 7101 JO % afraoaw parydrap
Y20z yoaej 1€ 8 SY Sz0z Yoae 1€ e Sy sae(nonaeg

(P2ILIS ISLMIDTIO SSI[UN ‘SR “SY U JUNOWE [[V)

sajer)saraul M—:_ﬂc_-— m—:%.:ﬂu w:.;aO.ZOQ [PIIAUWIUWOD [RUIDIXA PUE sULo] Wwid) J:gm:v w._v,n:n— PUR UPDID YSED JO ULI0] ) ur WCC_.__...M_—A,—O .nn=m>>c‘_ 10q UuLIa] w:O— pue wLo 1104s Wmn:-u.ﬁ:—_co A1 0] ‘n—_.:::_.:,—
SAIEAI SOIBT ISAINUL 1IRW Ul SIFUCYD JO 3t A1 01 dansodxd s Luedwo) oy, *SaTRI 188I9TUT 1OIBU UL SHFURYD JO ASNLID PMIN [[IM 1UNUNLISUT [EIIURLY 2 [0 SMO[) YSBD DI 10 AN[EA JIE] Y3 JRI] S DY) St YSL D]BL jsaIa]u]

1SN 91eY 1SAUIdU] L

‘so[qeed pue SOIqRAIEAI £HTUDIIND URIDIO) ‘STUIMOLIOG SPNPUL SHSTT JOHITI LG PAIIIYD STUDUMIISU]

1RIDUBUL] YSLU DRI 1SaTaul pue s AUBLIND Zm_v.—cr.— s o wv_nrm_ < 5981 dwon mu_hﬂ 1R ..an_A_ﬁ_ e al szZNH—U JO asnedaq ACMONYJ (1M JuswmnIsut [elaueuy e jo smop ysed almny Jjo anfes a1ey dy 10U ST ALY ST YSIT IAYJICAL

PSRRI D

LoGor'n - - - LOEOTE UALIND - SANIIRIT [RIDUBUL] 1))
0066466 ' ShLEE §a699 ia'699 i©0699 SAIqQeI] STy ]
91°L58‘91 - . - [ AT sorqeded apiy,
Si€ie'ge 94810kt ot L9y et EL9b STrabet sAumoriog

vzoz 7€ yoaep e sy
96949 - . - Py 6gLY 1UALIND - SANT{IRT] [RIDURUL] A1)
0g8°8667E {8680CE 123019} Y499 b oty son|Iqel] 3sear]
86'7SLE1 - - - g6 alLET sajqeded apuig,
vLSeeve LE'g91°EL 05'QQLY LE165€ 064897 sAumortog

Sz0% T8 yranp e sy
1m0, saean Euni) adop SABIA B SaRay «-1 JABIX T U} S8 SARINOLLIE]

(P91TIS ISIMIDNIO SSa[UN

V] "SY unjunowe |y}

ECOT

0 _u_-.__:_:.._um_m:ﬁ_ [ETIDRNUOI DY d2e Q] 2] Ul PRSOISIP STUNOWE oy J,
SANIIqRI] [RIDURUY JO SSULINITW [BAIDRIUOD (1)

“1eaf 1 uelp) $$9] Jo fjunjew oduisar

UE 9ARY PUT 'Sy UL DUIT} LUR 1B UAMRIP ¢ {ewt SBULIDEY URO] yurq oY1 ‘STUNRL PPatd L10198)S1ES JO 2URNUNUOD A1 01 192(qNG “DNOU THOL M YUR] AY) 4G PAIRUIULII) 9q £BW PUL JUIL) 0B B UMBIP 3Q ARUI SANI[IAR] 1JRIPISAO YUEQ Oy ],

10°S9z'09

PE€g89'vo

™o

10°592°09

Pe-£89tr9

(SNIEAE) D10 PUR JJRIPIDAO YUEBq) AR auo Uty im dutndxsy
wa Suneor

P30z ‘18 Yoavp 1w sy

Szow T8 yaaep e sy

siemonaeq

(POIMS DSLMIDYIO SSIPUN SIPIT] "y UL JUNOWIE ||

)

‘potrad Futiodar ayl jo pua ay w2 SANIAL) SUIMOLI0q UMBIPUN FULMO][0) AL} 01 S$aa0w pry Lueduio)) at,
sjuduRduRLIe SudURULL (1)

“JUAWINOLAUS SSAUSIG ) UF saFURYd 124 LINg 0) puodsa 01 SIIXA]) 1t aptacad o1 pur spaau Funsoauy pue urieaado syl punj o1 ajenbape st uomsod Anpuby s11 1wy $aastaq Suedop) oy,

‘siuaw@imbar jeydes Furyom oy ur sadurys pue sjnsax funesndo Aq Ajewiad

UDALIP d18 SSMNLANAR FuNrIado woay sWoj Ysw ay [, "Suonerado wory patetdudd ysea aie Apibiy Jo soaunos Lwwpid s, funduiod sy, -aui wo suonediqo s) 19w .10 d[1198 01 d[Ge dq 10U [[im Lnedwoy Ayl 1e) YSII AT STYSLL ANpInbry

HISRL AMpINbrT g

SIUDWIDIRIS [RIDURBUL] 0] SJON
SIS IA]I0EN 1001920 : NID
PaNIUL] $II0PRAIY RIPU] EPSOUSR THY



10°0 . o1-
(10'0) - %I+ LAN1susg 49H
(g€1n) (bec) %=
|ETL veT %I+ AANISUsg ¥NH
00°S gb1 9T
(00°S) [€:1 a0 %1+ Aanisuag (1sn
7oz ‘18 pIepn Loz IE yoae
POpuUd aeax POpuUD awax
sputod
SIS Ul dSEIIII(]
(X¥] JO 19u) JUNOIDY SSO'T 3 11044 uo 1pedur] / aswaaoug SARNITIIR]
‘pouiad dunzodas

Lo oy pue pottad Juniodar snowaxd o) udsdmiag suonEmANY S1E1 ARUTYIXS 01 SNP £HUALING [RUONIUNY 01UI UOISI2AL0Y uodu LU upIo) ur sasuddxs PUE 2WOAUT dYY Ul $3ZUND 3y} uo paseq panduiod st sisAfeue £IANISUSS

AIAnIsudg agey

09'S9E"tT 00°09% obeho'tn 00092 qana ueo'[ 0d
Adudaan) udao,] pedpoy
o158 Sty

(oL'1) (z00) . = d0
SL085°T Sg91 vS it [ NNA
(65°£99) (0g4) (60°g61) (£6'7) asn

aansodxd pagpayu) 19N

S1'095°'7 T E060 A[RAIIIDY 0],

- - 16T goo ANA SIISSY JeIduculy 1310
- - J = 440
So'bog4 610G 958 0€'6 ANA
05664 £5'6 ST ElTT AN asn

SQrAIIINY dpria],

69°80LT LY'LLGY AquAR [0 ],

= G £g'va 620 dasn sapIqer [eueul a0

- - £Lvoz ozt unA sfurmoarog
oLt TO0 - - d4g9H
06'€8c pee ch1Se bl qna
60°E3b°1 goLt 6€908 1 9€°S1 asn

sajqeied api],

‘SH uj JA Ul “SH Ul DA Ul Avupaan) udinan, paipaun

(Spief ul) vZoz 18 yoaejy e sy (sypie] w) Snos TR poany e sy AdUR.LINY uFIAI0,] Sae[nonJeg

'S1PRNUOY pIRMIO] 23UEoXa USTaL0] Flrsn
sae[al sajed afueydxs ufaro) ut sadun

£q pa19A0D S1YSL LHuaLID UFIBI0) SIY ], *SIQRUNSUOD
42 Jo S 21 01 dansodxa s Luedwog oy, “se1es sfuvypxs udio0) ul safumyd Jo ASNEIAq dIENIdNY (LM ANsodxd ue JO SMO[) YSED DIMIN] 10 dN[EA IR} DY) 1RYT HSL BY)) ST yS11 LHudLIns uFa104

1$MO[[0F ST ST aumsodNs UL URnIn] Jo S|IE1ep ay],

1910 PUE S[ELAIEIN ME1 Jo 1Todwr junoaar uo sajqeind uoro) pur sTuimousoq pajeunuouap Louatma uge.ioj s fuedwoy a1 o Ajrewind

P HSTY £>uaaan) uddaof ‘n
SHIDWIILIS [RIDURBUL] 0] SDI0N

EEISZIYIdRTOZNLO0T92N ¢ NID
PONUL| SOLIOIORIFOY vIpul eusauden 1THY



RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 30:
Capital Management

Risk Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can

continue to provide adequate returns to the shareholders.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through efficient allocation of capital towards business needs, optimisation of working capital

requirements and deployment of surplus funds into fixed deposits.

The management of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on regular basis. As part of this review, the
Board of directors considers the status of debts, cost of capital and movement in the working capital.

(All amount in Rs. lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Debt (refer note 9) 32,048.15 35,919.52
Share capital 10,453.11 10,453.11
Other equity 165,016.31 167,206.12
Total Equity 175,469.42 177,659.22
Gearing ratio 18.26% 20.22%




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

®

Note 31:
Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Demand from Industrial and Labour Laws disputes 462.48 462.48
Total 462.48 462.48
Notes:

(i) No provision is considered necessary since the Company expects favourable decisions.

These represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties and possible reimbursements
are dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants as the case may be
and therefore cannot be predicted accurately. The Company engages professional advisors to protect its interests and has been advised that it
has strong legal positions against such disputes. It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect
of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings.

Note 32 (a):
Capital and other Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances):
(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Property, plant and equipment 514.76 99.58

(ii) The Company has other commitments, for purchases/sales orders which are issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for

purchase/sale of goods and services and employee benefits, in normal course of business

(iii) The Company has long-term contracts for which there were no material foreseeable losses. The Company has made provision as at March 31,

2025, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on derivative contracts.
Note 32 (b):
Operating leases

The Company's cancellable operating lease arrangements mainly consists of offices for period of less than 11 months. Terms of lease include
terms for renewal, increase in rent in future periods and terms of cancellation (refer note 23).




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

ii.

iii.

Note 33:
Related Party Disclosures

List of related parties
Holding and ultimate holding company
The Compuny is controlled by the following:

Name Type Place of Ownership interest (in %)
Incorporation
As at March 31, 2025 |As at March 31, 2024
RHI Magnesita India Limited (w.e.f. January 05, 2023) Holding Company India 100% 100%
RHI Magnesita N.V., Austria (w.e.f, January 05, 2023) Ultimate Holding Company Austna - -

Key managerial personnel (KMP)

Mr. Parmod Sagar, Chairman, Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Abhishek Bajaj, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. June 01,2024)
Mr. Sanjeev Bhardwaj, Chief Financial Officer (till May 24, 2024)
Mr. Vijay Sharma, Independent director (till November 11, 2024)
Ms. Vijaya Gupta, Director (till April 03, 2024)

Ms. Bobby Mehndiratta, Company Secretary

Ms. Ticiana Kobel, Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director (w.e.f. November 06, 2024)

Mr. Azim Syed, Director (w.e.f. May 24, 2024)

Mr. Gustavo Lucio Goncalves Franco, Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director

Mr. Nazim Sheikh, Non-Executive & Independent Director

Fellow subsidiaries with whom the Company had transactions
RHI Magnesita D.o.o (formerly known as Sever Refractories D 0.0) (w.e £, July 17, 2023)

Dalmia GSB Refractories GmbH (w e.f. April 28, 2023)
RHI Magnesita GmbH

RHI Magnesita Kremen D.0.0.

RHI Magnesita Deutschland

Sapref Refractory Products Ltd

iv. Subsidiary

RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited

Significant Influence in Holding Company
Dalmia Bharat Refactories Limited




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 33 Contd:
(b) Related Party Transactions

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Relationship

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Sale of products and services

RHI Magnesita India Limited

RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited

RHI Magnesita D.o.o (formerly known as Seven Refractories D.o.0)
Dalmia GSB Refractories GmbH

Dalmia Bharat Refactories Limited

RHI Magnesita Deutschland

RHI Magnesita KREMEN d.o.0

RHI Magnesita GmbH

Total

Purchase of material and stock-in-trade
RHI Magnesita India Limited

RHI Magnesita Seven Refractlories Limited
RHI Magnesita GmbH

Dalmia Bharat Refactories Limited

RHI Magnesita KREMEN d.o.0.

Total

Investment made
RHI Magnesita Seven Relraclories Limited
Total

Recovery of collections by related party
RHI Magnesita India Limited

RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limiled
Total

Refund of collections to related Party
RHI Magnesita India Limited

RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
Total

Sale of proprety, plant and equipment
RHI Magnesita India Limited
Total

Other income*
RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
Total

Managerial remuneration
Abhishek Bajaj
Total

Commission on sale
Sapref Refraclors Products Lid
Total

Expenses reimbursement received
RHI Magnesita India Limited*
Total

Expenses reimbursement paid
RHI Magnesita [ndia Limited*

RHI Magnesita GinbH

Dalmia Bharat Refactories Limited

Total

Information and Technology expenses
RHI Magnesita GmbH
Total

Interest expense on external commercial borrowings
RHI Magnesita GmbH
Total

* this includes allocalion of common cost from Holding Company and managerial
remuneration to KMP of Rs. 168.91 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 207.77 Lakhs)

Holding Company
Subsidiarv

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiarv
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company
Subsidiarv
Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiany

Subsidiary

Holding Company

Subsidiary

|
Holding Company
Subsidiary

Holding Company

Subsidiary

Chiet Financial Officer

Fellow subsidiary

Holding Company

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Significant influence in Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Significant influence in Holding Company

|Significant influence in Holding Company

11,321.33 5,420.63

77.03 80.31
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(c) Outstanding balances

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

(All tin Rs. lakhs, otherwise stated)
A . . Year ended Year ended
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Payables:
RHI Magnesita [ndia Limited Holding company 2,189.88 6,621.77
RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited Subsidiary 162.2: 269.48
RHI Magnesita GmbH . Fellow Subsidiary 210.07 79.28
Dalmia GSB Refractories GmbH Fellow Subsidiary - 138.98
Sapref Refractory products Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 164.33 -
RHI Magnesita KREMEN d.o.0. Fellow Subsidiary 54.67 -
Total 2,781.18 7,109,51
Trade Receivables:
RHI Magnesita India Limited Holding company 3,859.42 1,604.43
RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited Subsidiarv 11.64 201.32
RHI Magnesita D.o.o (formerly known as Seven Refractories D.0.0) Fellow Subsidiary 289.63 1,144.93
Dalmia Bharat Refactories Limited Significant influence in Holding Company 339.47 696.99
Dalmia GSB Refractories GmbH Fellow Subsidiary 42.79 461.47
RHI Magnesita KREMEN d.o.0. Fellow Subsidiary 119.09 -
RHI Magnesita GmbH Fellow Subsidiary 494.85
Total 5.456.89 4.109.14
Other current assets
Dalmia Bharat Refactories Limited Significant influence in Holding Company 89.75
Total 80.75 -
External Commercial Borrowings: |
RHI Magnesita GmbH Fellow Subsidiary 23,942.49 23,365.60
RHI Magnesita GmbH - Interest accrued Fellow Subsidiarv 203.25 1,113.16
Total 24.235.74 24,478.76
Investment
RHI Magnesita Seven Relractories Limited Subsidiarv 15,440.75 15.410.75
Total 15,440.75 15.440.75
|
Other transactions |
Guarantee given to Bank by RHI Magnesita N.V.. Austria IUltimate Holding Companv | 69.000.00 ' 54.000.00
|_Total [ 69.000.00 | 54,000.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties - All related party ransactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm's length basis. All
outstanding receivable balances are unsecured and repayable in cash. Further, no loss allowances were made against such balances.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 34: Due to Micro and small enterprises*

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Lo Lo
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end** 1,571.86 2,338.43

(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 164.18 129.37

(iit) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year. 3,746.51 13,953.00

(iv) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed ) )

day during the year

(v) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the . }

appointed day during the year

(vi) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the i .

appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

(vii) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 164.18 151.37

(\iii) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act.

* Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) are based

on information made available to the Company.

**Includes MSME dues payable for purchase of property plant and equipments amounting to Rs. 13.15 Lakhs as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Nil Lakhs).
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 36:

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III

(i) Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956., except for the parties mentioned

Name of struck off Company Nature of Balance Relationship Balance Relationship with
transactions outstanding asat |with the Struck|outstandingas |the Struck off
March 31, 2025 off company at March 31, company
2024
Nimitaya Hotel & Resorts Limited Hotel service 0.35 Not related - |Not related
Precision Engineers & Fabricators RM purchases (3.47) Not related (3.85) | Not related
Private Limited
Zain Thermal Solutions Private Limited|Service (9.72) Not related (9.72) | Not related

(iii) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current year or previous year.

(iv) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(v) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

(a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall,:

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

During the previous year, the Company has received funds (including share premium) from its holding company through issue of share capital (Refer
Note 39). Out of these funds Rs. 6,184.74 lakhs was utilised for investment in its subsidiary (Refer note 38).

(vi) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(vii) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.,

(viii) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(ix) Valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company has chosen cost model for valuation of its property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use-assets) and intangible assets both
during the current or previous vear.

(x) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks.
The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.

(xi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are vet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
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RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
CIN : U26100TN2018PLC125133
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 38: Investment in Subsidiary

On April 21, 2023, the Company executed a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) with Seven Refractories GMBH, Vienna for purchase of remaining 49% paid up equity shares of its existing subsidiary
RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited (formerly known as Dalmia Seven Refractories Limited) (RHIMSRL"). On July 23, 2023 the Company has completed the purchase of 49% i.e.
9,800,000 equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each of RHIMSRL for a consideration amounting to Rs. 6,184.75 lakhs. Consequently, RHIMSRL has become the 100% wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Note 39: Issue of share capital

On May 08, 2023 and August 11, 2023, the Company has issued 16,975,051 and 5,072,464 shares respectively to RHI Magnesita India Limited by way of right issue, having face value of Rs. 10 each
at a premium of Rs. 197 each for an amount aggregating to Rs. 45,638.36 lakhs. The purpose of issuance of share capital was repayment or pre-payment in full or in part of certain borrowings
availed by the Company.
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40. Summary of other accounting policies

This note provides a list of other accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial
Statements to the extent they not already been disclosed above. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1)

(i)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”).

The Board of Directors, together with Managing Director has been identified as being the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). CODM evaluates the performance of the Company based
on the single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial
performance.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency’). The
Company’s operations are primarily in India. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian
rupee (Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within Other Income/Expense
as appropriate.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(iii) Income Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Giv)

)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Financial Statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

(vi) Financial assets

A.

Classification and initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset. The Company determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The Company classifies the
financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit or loss, or
through other comprehensive income)
e Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time
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of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Financial assets are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when
the same are managed by the Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is
evaluated on fair value basis in accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of
the Company. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

c. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

C. Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

e Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
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(vil)

(viii)

(ix)

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity.

The Company’s financial labilities includes borrowings, lease liability, trade and other
payables.

Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial liability. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income
or finance cost.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial
Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company acquires forward contracts to mitigate the risk arising from foreign currency
exposures . These forward contracts are designated as derivative financial instruments.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of the derivative contract is entered
into and subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of reporting period. The
consequent gains/ losses, arising from subsequent re-measurement, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, unless the derivative is designated as hedging instrument and
hedging relationship is established with the item being hedged.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
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including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

(xiii) Employee benefits
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is caleulated annually by an actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in
the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments
or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employees’ state insurance scheme are
considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are
rendered by the employee. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond
its monthly contributions.

Other Benefits - Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12
months from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation
towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a
result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12
months from the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The
Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which they arise. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance
sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for

the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render
the service.
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(xiv) Business Combinations

(xv)

(xvi)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary and business comprises the

- fair values of the assets transferred

- liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

» equity interests issued by the Company

« fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

« consideration transferred

« amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity

» acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve
provided there is clear evidence of the underlving reasons for classifying the business
combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised
directly in equity as capital reserve.

Investments in subsidiary

Investments in subsidiary is carried at cost less accumnulated impairment losses, if any. Where
an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an
impairment provision is recognised, if required immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of such investment, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(xvii) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of spemflc borrowmgs pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing.eos aible for capitalisation.
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Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(xviii) Government Grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with required
conditions. Export incentive under Remission of Duties and Taxes on Export products
(RODTEP), Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) and duty drawback are accrued
when no significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and
as to its ultimate collection exist.

(xix) Interestincome
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is disclosed as interest income within other
income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance)

(xx) Earnings per Share

(1) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(xxi) Leases
As alessee
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset at cost with a corresponding lease liability, except
for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets in accordance
with Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’.
The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
lability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial

direct costs etc.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-
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line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-
of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that
rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate.

For short-term and leases low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(xxii) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business and reflects Company’s unconditional right to consideration (that
is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified approach
required by the Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the
initial recognition of receivables.

(xxiii) Inventories

Inventories including stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable
value. The cost of individual items of inventory is determined using weighted average method.
Cost of raw materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-
progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.




RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 41: Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-9aF of the
Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the
documentation for the international and domestic transactions entered into with the associated enterprise during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by
November 30, 2025, as required by law. The Management confirms that its international and domestic transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have
any impact on the Financial Statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation.

Note g42: Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company was not required to spend any amount during the year for Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135(5) and 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly, there is no amount
unspent as at March 31, 2025.

Note 43: Merger

The Board of Directors of the Company in their board meeting held on February 08, 2024, approved the draft scheme of merger of RHIMSRL (Transferor Company) with and into the
Company. The appointed date of the merger is April 01, 2023.

Further, the draft scheme of merger was filed with Registrar of Companies, Chennai on February 09, 2024, which has been approved. The Company is in the process of taking
approvals from shareholders, ereditors and other relevant authorities,

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared without taking the impact of merger

Note 44: Other information

The Company has a subsidiary i.e. RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited. The Company has claimed exception given in the Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
therefore has not prepared the consolidated financial statements.
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